
 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

City Council Chambers, 160 South 3rd East 
Mountain Home, Idaho 

Tuesday, December 9, 2025 at 5:00 PM 

Join the Meeting live through Microsoft Teams Town Hall  
Link provided on the City Website: https://mountain-home.us/city-government/city-council/ 

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Mountain Home. Anyone desiring 
accommodation for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-587-2104 by at least 9:00 AM the 

morning of the public meeting. 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM (5:00 PM) 

____ Councilwoman Garvey   ____ Councilwoman Wirkkala   
____ Councilman Brennan  ____ Councilman Harjo  ____ Mayor Sykes  

PUBLIC HEARING  
 1) Public Hearing on Fiber Optic Fees 

PRESENTATION/GUEST  
 1) Rachele Klein to speak on behalf of Republic Service regarding the annual rate adjustment for 

garbage and recycling services.  

RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE 
 (Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes) The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an 

opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council on matters that are not listed on the 
current agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction and municipal purview of the City. 
Comments may not involve personnel matters, legal disputes, or the private non-municipal affairs of the 
constituency. Comments regarding Zoning or Land Use issues may only be made during properly noticed 
public hearings. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
 Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had, any contact with any 

person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact. 

CONSENT AGENDA  
 1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Special City Council Minutes - November 21, 2025 
 2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Council Minutes - November 25, 2025         
 3) Approve expenditures from 11/26/2025 to 12/09/2025 in the amount of $773,027.05 
 4) Authorize pre-approval of monthly expenditures from 12/10/2025 to 1/13/2026. 
 5) Approve payroll for the period of 10/22/2025 to 11/21/2025 in the amount of $866,247.12. 
 6) Approve the annual road and street financial report for the State of Idaho and authorize the 

Mayor and City Clerk to sign. 
 7) Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all required documents for the grant application 

Page 1 of 360

https://mountain-home.us/city-government/city-council/
Pg 47

76 page streets department report



2025/26-006 
 8) Approve Resolution 29-2025R, establishing new monthly residential and commercial garbage 

and recycling rates for 2026. 
 9) Approve the agreement with Azuga and authorize the Mayor to sign.  
 10) Approve the request to lease-purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) for the Fire 

Department with the Lease paperwork through Community Leasing Partners, with the first 
payment due in fiscal year 2026-2027, authorizing the Mayor to sign all related documents. 

 11) Approve the Fire Department's request to reallocate the FY26 budgeted SCBA lease funds to 
the WUI truck purchase. 

 12) Pass Resolution #27-2025R – Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Equipment Lease 
Agreement and all other schedules attached thereto with Community Leasing Partners for 
SCBA (Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus) for the Fire Department, and Authorize the Mayor 
and City Clerk to sign. 

 13) Approve Finding of Facts for annexation with conditions by Endurance Holdings, LLC. 
 14) Approve Finding of Facts to zone R-4 with PUD entitled "Blue Yonder West," with conditions. 
 15) Approve Finding of Facts preliminary plat "Blue Yonder West" with conditions. 
 16) Approve the Finding of Facts to amend the entitled R-4 PUD "Turner House Depot" with 

conditions. 
 17) Approve the Finding of Facts to amend the "Turner House Depot" preliminary plat with 

conditions. 

OLD BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 
 1) Items removed from Consent Agenda 
 2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to provide City issued cell phones to seated elected 

officials. 
 3) Action Item: Deliberation/ Decision regarding Resolution #28-2025R regarding Fiber Optic 

Fees and authorizing signature of resolution.  

ORDINANCE 
 1) Ordinance 1810- Annexation of "Blue Yonder West".  
 2) Ordinance 1811- to Zone R-4 PUD Blue Yonder West. 
 3) Ordinance 1812 amending the R-4 PUD entitled "Turner House Depot".  

FINAL COMMENTS 

ADJOURN 

STAFF MEMO 
 1) City Hall staff reports. 
 2) Development Service staff reports.  
 3) IT Department staff reports. 
  

 

Page 2 of 360

?

Garbage Rate Increase 5

Page 3

Pg 3



Page 4 of 360

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight



Page 5 of 360



 

  

11101 W. Executive Drive, Boise, ID 83813 
O: 208-761-2931  E: mmingura@republicservices.com   

 November 25, 2025 
 
Mayor Rich Sykes 
City of Mountain Home 
160 S 3rd E St. 
Mountain Home, ID 83647 
 
 
Dear Mayor Sykes, 
 
As provided in Exhibit B Price Escalation Factor of the Waste Collection Services with the 
City of Mountain Home, we calculated the annual rate adjustment based on the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the U.S. City Average - All Urban Consumers Index, 
Expense Category Garbage/Trash, as published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau 
of Labor Statistics.  
 
The CPI change for the previous twelve-month period ending in September 2025 is 
5.36%.   
 
However, we are requesting an increase of 4.75%, effective January 1, 2026. Please refer 
to attached rates.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know. We appreciate the 
opportunity to serve your community. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Margaret Mingura 
Finance Manager, Republic Services 

Page 6 of 360



Bureau of Labor Statistics

Series Id:

Series Title:

Area:

Item:

Base Period:

Years:

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec HALF1 HALF2

2015 427.734 429.248 429.235 429.807 431.234 430.813 431.229 432.967 433.843 434.829 436.428 436.996

2016 437.205 438.296 437.699 437.676 438.317 437.858 438.607 439.358 439.707 440.311 443.343 444.745

2017 446.266 447.699 446.987 447.129 447.272 448.046 448.328 448.717 449.008 452.196 453.820 453.596

2018 453.354 454.915 455.230 458.722 462.887 465.041 465.579 470.457 471.026 472.535 486.650 485.935 458.358 475.364

2019 475.687 477.474 478.569 479.449 480.865 480.984 482.138 483.987 484.346 486.133 486.485 486.708 478.838 484.966

2020 491.003 494.429 495.288 494.432 494.946 496.679 498.564 500.882 501.756 503.315 504.970 508.190 494.463 502.946

2021 512.722 517.270 518.505 518.579 516.440 517.202 521.185 524.408 529.934 530.114 529.053 532.538 516.786 527.872

2022 533.078 538.313 540.719 542.564 544.546 547.554 548.187 548.706 558.254 561.090 563.816 565.185 541.129 557.540

2023 570.412 575.697 576.773 580.124 587.431 589.812 596.167 597.347 596.997 597.569 601.631 602.164 580.042 598.646

2024 606.773 610.551 610.015 611.073 609.538 611.946 614.089 615.880 619.640 621.632 627.127 627.807 609.983 621.029

2025 629.803 641.938 642.053 643.063 646.507 648.477 652.682 656.067 652.831 641.974

Index Change 33.191

Percent Change 5.36%

Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U)

Original Data Value

CUUR0000SEHG02

Not Seasonally Adjusted

Garbage and trash collection in U.S. city average, all 
urban consumers, not seasonally adjustedU.S. city average

Garbage and trash collection

DECEMBER 1983=100

2015 to 2025

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics Generated on: November 21, 2025 (12:52:06 PM)

Page 7 of 360



Frequency Extra 1 Cart 2 Carts 3 Carts 4 Carts 5 Carts

1 x week 7.89 17.33 34.66 51.99 69.32 86.65

Delivery Extra 1 x month EOW 1 x week

29.71 42.87 not available not available 58.22

29.71 69.03 not available not available 119.48

29.71 94.60 not available not available 161.49

2 x week 3 x week 4 x week 5 x week 6 x week

116.35 174.45 232.57 290.66 unavailable

238.74 358.02 477.33 596.62 unavailable

322.80 484.15 645.46 806.75 unavailable

Delivery Service
Monthly

Rent
Daily
Rent

Tax
on Rent

29.71 22.18 11.86 0.39 6%

Size Delivery Haul
Regular
per Ton

C&D
per Ton

Asbestos
per Ton

Monthly
Rent

Daily
Rent

Tax
on Rent

20 116.03 199.85 65.00 65.00 65.00 97.35 3.20 6%

30 116.03 294.75 65.00 65.00 65.00 145.09 4.77 6%

Compactors - 294.75 65.00 - - - - -

Lid Replacement

Relocation - Any Size

41.86

96.63

Steam Clean 143.57

Mountain Home City Rates
Billed Monthly by Republic Services

Monthly Rates Effective 01/01/26

Size

Commercial MSW Carts

Commercial Temp On Call

8

Commercial MSW - 2 x week thru 5 x week

Commercial MSW - Delivery thru 1 x week
Size

3

6

Size

3

Lid Lock Installation

7.89

Large Item

7.89

Additional Service Per Yard - 5 Minutes

Cart Replacement

22.62

79.98

90.38

Dead Animal Removal 73.81

40.48

3

Industrial RO

6

8

Late Cans

Miscellaneous

Extra Pickup - Residential

Page 8 of 360



Extra 1 Cart 2 Carts 3 Carts 4 Carts 5 Carts 6 Carts

8.26 9.94 14.24 18.54 22.84 27.10 31.38

Delivery Extra 1 x month EOW 1 x week

28.33 22.18 50.70 65.38 86.74

28.33 36.23 not available 108.49 135.42

28.33 49.59 not available not available 179.39

Delivery Haul
Monthly

Rent
Daily
Rent

Tax
on Rent

111.95 294.75 97.35 3.20 6%

111.95 294.75 145.09 4.77 6%

- 294.75 - - -

Size

20

30

Compactors

Industrial IR

8

Commercial RCY - Thursdays only
Size

3

6

Frequency

1 x week

Commercial RCY Carts

Page 9 of 360



Residential MSW & RCY Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
regular curbside 1 95 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      13.47     4.30     17.77      0.26 18.03   
regular curbside 2 95 gallon solid waste carts - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      13.47     6.45     19.92      0.39 20.31   
carryout/drive-in 1 95 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      19.47     4.30     23.77      0.26 24.03   

regular curbside 1 48 or 65 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      11.84     4.30     16.14      0.26 16.40   
regular curbside 2 48 or 65 gallon solid waste carts - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      11.84     6.45     18.29      0.39 18.68   
carryout/drive-in 1 48 or 65 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      17.84     4.30     22.14      0.26 22.40   

each additional cart -         -      -          -   -      -         2.15     2.15        0.13 2.28     

Commercial MSW Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
extra pickup per container 7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     

1 cart 1 x week 15.05     2.15     17.20      0.13 17.33   15.05     2.15     17.20      0.13 17.33   
2 carts 1 x week 30.10     4.30     34.40      0.26 34.66   30.10     4.30     34.40      0.26 34.66   
3 carts 1 x week 45.15     6.45     51.60      0.39 51.99   45.15     6.45     51.60      0.39 51.99   
4 carts 1 x week 60.20     8.60     68.80      0.52 69.32   60.20     8.60     68.80      0.52 69.32   
5 carts 1 x week 75.25     10.75   86.00      0.65 86.65   75.25     10.75   86.00      0.65 86.65   

delivery charge per container 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 42.87     -      42.87      -   42.87   42.87     -      42.87      -   42.87   

1 3yd 2 x month NO LONGER OFFERED 18.43     11.86   30.29      0.71 31.00   18.43     11.86   30.29      0.71 31.00   
1 3yd 1 x week 45.65     11.86   57.51      0.71 58.22   45.65     11.86   57.51      0.71 58.22   
1 3yd 2 x week 103.78   11.86   115.64    0.71 116.35 103.78   11.86   115.64    0.71 116.35 
1 3yd 3 x week 161.88   11.86   173.74    0.71 174.45 161.88   11.86   173.74    0.71 174.45 
1 3yd 4 x week 220.00   11.86   231.86    0.71 232.57 220.00   11.86   231.86    0.71 232.57 
1 3yd 5 x week 278.09   11.86   289.95    0.71 290.66 278.09   11.86   289.95    0.71 290.66 
1 3yd 6 x week 336.37   11.86   348.23    0.71 348.94 336.37   11.86   348.23    0.71 348.94 

delivery charge per container NO LONGER OFFERED 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 54.28     -      54.28      -   54.28   54.28     -      54.28      -   54.28   

1 4yd 1 x week 64.26     13.57   77.83      0.81 78.64   64.26     13.57   77.83      0.81 78.64   
1 4yd 2 x week 142.75   13.57   156.32    0.81 157.13 142.75   13.57   156.32    0.81 157.13 
1 4yd 3 x week 221.26   13.57   234.83    0.81 235.64 221.26   13.57   234.83    0.81 235.64 
1 4yd 4 x week 299.78   13.57   313.35    0.81 314.16 299.78   13.57   313.35    0.81 314.16 
1 4yd 5 x week 378.29   13.57   391.86    0.81 392.67 378.29   13.57   391.86    0.81 392.67 
1 4yd 6 x week 471.05   13.57   484.62    0.81 485.43 471.05   13.57   484.62    0.81 485.43 

delivery charge per container 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 69.03     -      69.03      -   69.03   69.03     -      69.03      -   69.03   

1 6yd 2 x month NO LONGER OFFERED 42.43     16.34   58.77      0.98 59.75   42.43     16.34   58.77      0.98 59.75   
1 6yd 1 x week 102.16   16.34   118.50    0.98 119.48 102.16   16.34   118.50    0.98 119.48 
1 6yd 2 x week 221.42   16.34   237.76    0.98 238.74 221.42   16.34   237.76    0.98 238.74 
1 6yd 3 x week 340.70   16.34   357.04    0.98 358.02 340.70   16.34   357.04    0.98 358.02 
1 6yd 4 x week 460.01   16.34   476.35    0.98 477.33 460.01   16.34   476.35    0.98 477.33 
1 6yd 5 x week 579.30   16.34   595.64    0.98 596.62 579.30   16.34   595.64    0.98 596.62 
1 6yd 6 x week 698.59   16.34   714.93    0.98 715.91 698.59   16.34   714.93    0.98 715.91 

delivery charge per container 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 94.60     -      94.60      -   94.60   94.60     -      94.60      -   94.60   

1 8yd 1 x week 142.08   18.31   160.39    1.10 161.49 142.08   18.31   160.39    1.10 161.49 
1 8yd 2 x week 303.39   18.31   321.70    1.10 322.80 303.39   18.31   321.70    1.10 322.80 
1 8yd 3 x week 464.74   18.31   483.05    1.10 484.15 464.74   18.31   483.05    1.10 484.15 
1 8yd 4 x week 626.05   18.31   644.36    1.10 645.46 626.05   18.31   644.36    1.10 645.46 
1 8yd 5 x week 787.34   18.31   805.65    1.10 806.75 787.34   18.31   805.65    1.10 806.75 
1 8yd 6 x week 948.66   18.31   966.97    1.10 968.07 948.66   18.31   966.97    1.10 968.07 

extra pickup per container 57.63     -      57.63      -   57.63   57.63     -      57.63      -   57.63   
1 6yd compactor 1 x week 145.52   -      145.52    -   145.52 145.52   -      145.52    -   145.52 
1 6yd compactor 2 x week 291.04   -      291.04    -   291.04 291.04   -      291.04    -   291.04 
1 6yd compactor 3 x week 383.53   -      383.53    -   383.53 383.53   -      383.53    -   383.53 

Commercial Temp On Call Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
3yd delivery 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
3yd regular 22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   

3yd monthly rental -         11.86   11.86      0.71 12.57   -         11.86   11.86      0.71 12.57   
3yd daily rental -         0.39     0.39        0.02 0.41     -         0.39     0.39        0.02 0.41     

Mountain Home City Rates effective 01/01/26
RepublicCustomer

Page 10 of 360



Mountain Home City Rates effective 01/01/26
RepublicCustomer

Commercial RCY Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
extra pickup per container 8.26       -      8.26        -   8.26     8.26       -      8.26        -   8.26     

1 cart 1 x week 7.66       2.15     9.81        0.13 9.94     7.66       2.15     9.81        0.13 9.94     
2 carts 1 x week 9.68       4.30     13.98      0.26 14.24   9.68       4.30     13.98      0.26 14.24   
3 carts 1 x week 11.70     6.45     18.15      0.39 18.54   11.70     6.45     18.15      0.39 18.54   
4 carts 1 x week 13.72     8.60     22.32      0.52 22.84   13.72     8.60     22.32      0.52 22.84   
5 carts 1 x week 15.70     10.75   26.45      0.65 27.10   15.70     10.75   26.45      0.65 27.10   
6 carts 1 x week 17.71     12.90   30.61      0.77 31.38   17.71     12.90   30.61      0.77 31.38   

delivery charge per container 28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   
extra pickup per container 22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   

1 3yd 1 x month 30.13     19.41   49.54      1.16 50.70   30.13     19.41   49.54      1.16 50.70   
1 3yd 2 x month 44.81     19.41   64.22      1.16 65.38   44.81     19.41   64.22      1.16 65.38   
1 3yd 1 x week 66.17     19.41   85.58      1.16 86.74   66.17     19.41   85.58      1.16 86.74   
1 3yd 2 x week 116.80   19.41   136.21    1.16 137.37 116.80   19.41   136.21    1.16 137.37 
1 3yd 3 x week 170.67   19.41   190.08    1.16 191.24 170.67   19.41   190.08    1.16 191.24 
1 3yd 4 x week 226.28   19.41   245.69    1.16 246.85 226.28   19.41   245.69    1.16 246.85 
1 3yd 5 x week 284.13   19.41   303.54    1.16 304.70 284.13   19.41   303.54    1.16 304.70 

delivery charge per container 28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   
extra pickup per container 36.23     -      36.23      -   36.23   36.23     -      36.23      -   36.23   

1 6yd 2 x month 67.66     38.52   106.18    2.31 108.49 67.66     38.52   106.18    2.31 108.49 
1 6yd 1 x week 94.59     38.52   133.11    2.31 135.42 94.59     38.52   133.11    2.31 135.42 
1 6yd 2 x week 194.92   38.52   233.44    2.31 235.75 194.92   38.52   233.44    2.31 235.75 
1 6yd 3 x week 304.09   38.52   342.61    2.31 344.92 304.09   38.52   342.61    2.31 344.92 
1 6yd 4 x week 406.15   38.52   444.67    2.31 446.98 406.15   38.52   444.67    2.31 446.98 
1 6yd 5 x week 494.02   38.52   532.54    2.31 534.85 494.02   38.52   532.54    2.31 534.85 

delivery charge per container 28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   
extra pickup per container 49.59     -      49.59      -   49.59   49.59     -      49.59      -   49.59   

1 8yd 1 x week 127.41   49.04   176.45    2.94 179.39 127.41   49.04   176.45    2.94 179.39 
1 8yd 2 x week 260.84   49.04   309.88    2.94 312.82 260.84   49.04   309.88    2.94 312.82 
1 8yd 3 x week 383.48   49.04   432.52    2.94 435.46 383.48   49.04   432.52    2.94 435.46 
1 8yd 4 x week 491.61   49.04   540.65    2.94 543.59 491.61   49.04   540.65    2.94 543.59 
1 8yd 5 x week 608.81   49.04   657.85    2.94 660.79 608.81   49.04   657.85    2.94 660.79 

Page 11 of 360



Mountain Home City Rates effective 01/01/26
RepublicCustomer

Industrial RO
 Disposal 
per ton 

Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total  Disposal Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total

20yd delivery -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 
20yd msw haul 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 
20yd c&d haul 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 

20yd asbestos haul 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 
20yd monthly rent -         -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 -         -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 

20yd daily rent -         -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     -         -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     

30yd delivery -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 
30yd msw haul 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
30yd c&d haul 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 

30yd asbestos haul 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
30yd monthly rent -         -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 -         -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 

30yd daily rent -         -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     -         -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     

compactors 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 

Industrial IR Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
20yd delivery 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 

20yd regular haul 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
20yd monthly rent -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 

20yd daily rent -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     

30yd delivery 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 
30yd regular haul 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
30yd monthly rent -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 

30yd daily rent -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     

compactors 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 

Miscellaneous Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
additional service per yard - 5 minutes 22.62     -      22.62      -   22.62   22.62     -      22.62      -   22.62   

cart replacement 75.45     -      75.45      4.53 79.98   75.45     -      75.45      4.53 79.98   
dead animal removal 73.81     -      73.81      -   73.81   73.81     -      73.81      -   73.81   

extra pickup - residential 7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     
large item 40.48     -      40.48      -   40.48   40.48     -      40.48      -   40.48   
late cans 7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     

lid lock installation 90.38     -      90.38      -   90.38   90.38     -      90.38      -   90.38   
lid replacement 41.86     -      41.86      -   41.86   41.86     -      41.86      -   41.86   

relocation - any size 96.63     -      96.63      -   96.63   96.63     -      96.63      -   96.63   
steam clean 143.57   -      143.57    -   143.57 143.57   -      143.57    -   143.57 

Page 12 of 360



Page 13 of 360



Page 14 of 360



Page 15 of 360



Page 16 of 360



Page 17 of 360



Page 18 of 360



Page 19 of 360



Page 20 of 360



Page 21 of 360



Page 22 of 360



Page 23 of 360



Page 24 of 360



Page 25 of 360



Page 26 of 360



Page 27 of 360



Page 28 of 360



Page 29 of 360



Page 30 of 360



Page 31 of 360



Page 32 of 360



Page 33 of 360



Page 34 of 360



Page 35 of 360



Page 36 of 360



Page 37 of 360



Page 38 of 360



Page 39 of 360



Page 40 of 360



Page 41 of 360



Page 42 of 360



Page 43 of 360



Page 44 of 360



Page 45 of 360



Page 46 of 360



##### 

 

Council Minutes – November 21, 2025 

AGENDA 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 21st, 2025 AT 9:30 A.M.  
 AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 
  
  CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
 CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any 
contact with any person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, 
please set forth the nature of the contact. 

 
 AGENDA ITEM 

1) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding a written statement from the City 
Council concerning Pioneer Federal Credit Union. 

 
ADJOURN  

      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47 of 360

Page 46 of Packet
Special Meeting



##### 

 

Council Minutes – November 21, 2025 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 21st, 2025 AT 9:30 A.M.  
 AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 
 

The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at Mountain Home City Hall, 160 South 3rd 
East, Mountain Home, Idaho, on November 21st, 2025. A quorum was established with Councilwoman Garvey, Councilman 
Brennan, Councilman Harjo, and Mayor Sykes. Councilwoman Wirkkala was present via phone.  
 
 Mayor Sykes said that Paul Fitzer, City Attorney, had requested that an Executive Session be added at the end of 
the meeting.  
 
 Councilman Harjo made a motion to add Executive Session Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(f) at the end of the 
meeting. Councilman Brennan seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilman 
Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any contact with any person regarding 
any items on this Special City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact. 

 
No Council Members had anything to declare. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 
 

1) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding a written statement from the City Council concerning Pioneer Federal 
Credit Union. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said she did not have her computer with her and asked that someone text her a photo of the 
statement. She asked why this was the first time she had seen the letter and wanted to know who wrote it and when. 
 
 Councilman Harjo stated that he wrote the bulk of the letter at 8:45 a.m. that morning. He expressed disappointment 
and concern regarding statements made by Councilwoman Wirkkala. He noted that she was within her rights to state her 
position on the donation and branding, but he believed the comments that followed were unprofessional and did not represent 
the City or the City Council. He said the donation was generous, although not yet finalized by the City or Pioneer Federal 
Credit Union, and that the wording used in her statements was not appropriate for the City and could harm the reputation of a 
long-standing business partner that had contributed significantly to the community for more than seven decades. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala discussed the email she had sent to the CEO of Pioneer Federal Credit Union, along with 
the emails she had sent to the City Attorney. 
 
 Councilman Harjo stated that his concern was not that Councilwoman Wirkkala acted within her role as a Council 
member, but rather that her statements about Pioneer Federal Credit Union were unprofessional. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala expressed frustration over the short notice for the meeting and for receiving the letter. She 
stated that she did not want a branded park, noting that constituents had shared the same view, and concluded by saying she 
would not sign the letter. 
 
 Councilman Brennan stated that he agreed Councilwoman Wirkkala could express her views, but he also had the 
right to disagree. He noted that the park was a long-term community project benefiting local children and added that he had 
not heard from any constituents opposing potential branding. He concluded that the park would provide a benefit to the 
community. 
 
 Councilwoman Garvey stated that communities relied on business donations and referenced parks in Boise, noting 
that without such contributions, they would not exist. She emphasized that Mountain Home was no different despite being 
smaller. She agreed that Councilwoman Wirkkala had the right to express her views but said the community would not want 
to jeopardize Pioneer Federal Credit Union’s opportunity to fund Railroad Park. She also suggested removing the last sentence 
of the first paragraph, as it reflected opinion. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala restated that constituents had shared their concerns with her, and she had conveyed those 
concerns in her role as a Council member. 
 
 Councilman Brennan made a motion to strike the last sentence of the first paragraph and proceed forward with 
signing the letter. Councilwoman Garvey seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilman 
Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; nay. The motion passed by majority vote. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 1) Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(f) – to communicate with legal counsel for the public agency to discuss 
the legal ramification of and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to 
be litigated. 
 
 Councilman Harjo made a motion to enter into Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(f). 
Councilwoman Garvey seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman Brennan; 
aye, Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 The Council entered into Executive Session at 9:50 a.m. 
 
 The Council came out of Executive Session at 10:09 a.m.  

Page 48 of 360



##### 

 

Council Minutes – November 21, 2025 

 
ADJOURN 

 
There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 10:09 A.M. by orders from 

Mayor Sykes.   
 
 
              
       Rich Sykes, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:        

   Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 49 of 360



##### 

Council Minutes – November 25, 2025 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON NOVEMBER 25TH, 2025, AT 5:00 P.M. 
AT MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 
 
#####  CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
#####  RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE 
 
#####  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
  Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any contact with 

any person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of 
the contact. 

 
##### CONSENT AGENDA  

  All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal Council action, but are typically 
routine or not of great controversy and will be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of 
clarification may be asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy 
discussion or separate motion a Council member or citizen may request an item be removed from 
the Consent Agenda section and placed on the Regular Agenda.  
ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 

   
1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Council– November 12, 2025 
2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Planning and Zoning Commission – October 21, 2025 
3) Approve expenditures from 11/13/2025 to 11/20/2025 in the amount of $442,108.67. 
4) Treasurer’s Report for the period ending 10/31/2025 
5) Approve request to lease-purchase the Elgin Pelican Mechanical Sweeper for the Street 

Department with the Lease paperwork through Mountain West Bank, authorizing the Mayor to 
sign all related documents. 

6) Pass Resolution #24-2025R – Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Equipment Lease 
Agreement and all other schedules attached thereto with Mountain West Bank for the Elgin 
Pelican Sweeper for the Streets Department, and Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign. 

7) Approve request to lease-purchase the Snowplow 567 Peterbilt for the Street Department 
with the Lease paperwork through Mountain West Bank, authorizing the Mayor to sign all 
related documents. 

8) Pass Resolution #25-2025R – Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Equipment Lease 
Agreement and all other schedules attached thereto with Mountain West Bank for the 567 
Peterbilt Snowplow for the Streets Department, and Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign. 

9) Approve request to lease-purchase the 2026 Ford F-350 for the Street Department with the 
Lease paperwork through Mountain West Bank, authorizing the Mayor to sign all related 
documents. 

10) Pass Resolution #26-2025R – Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Equipment Lease 
Agreement and all other schedules attached thereto with Mountain West bank for the 2026 
Ford F-350 Fleet Truck for the Streets Department, and Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign. 

 
 

#####  NEW BUSINESS 
1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda  
2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation and 

Finding of Facts for a conditional use permit to operate a Drive-up window located on a parcel 
addressed as 1410 American Legion Boulevard (RPA3S06E252160) with conditions. 

 
#####  FINAL COMMENTS 
 
#####  ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 360



##### 

Council Minutes – November 25, 2025 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON NOVEMBER 25TH, 2025, AT 5:00 P.M. 
 
 The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at the Mountain Home City Hall 
Chambers, 160 South 3rd East, Mountain Home, Idaho, on November 25th, 2025. A quorum was established with 
Councilwoman Garvey, Councilwoman Wirkkala, Councilman Brennan, Councilman Harjo, and Mayor Sykes being 
present.  
 
RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE  
 
   Don Gust came forward to ask about the purchase of the snow plow, and street sweepers on the Consent 
Agenda.  
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any contact with any person 
regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact.  

 
 No Council Members had anything to declare. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal Council action, but are typically routine 
or not of great controversy and will be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of clarification may be 
asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy discussion or separate motion a 
Councilmember or citizen may request an item be removed from the Consent Agenda section and placed on the 
Regular Agenda. ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 
 

1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Council– November 12, 2025 
2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Planning and Zoning Commission – October 21, 2025 
3) Approve expenditures from 11/13/2025 to 11/20/2025 in the amount of $442,108.67. 
4) Treasurer’s Report for the period ending 10/31/2025 
5) Approve request to lease-purchase the Elgin Pelican Mechanical Sweeper for the Street 

Department with the Lease paperwork through Mountain West Bank, authorizing the Mayor to 
sign all related documents. 

6) Pass Resolution #24-2025R – Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Equipment Lease 
Agreement and all other schedules attached thereto with Mountain West Bank for the Elgin 
Pelican Sweeper for the Streets Department, and Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign. 

7) Approve request to lease-purchase the Snowplow 567 Peterbilt for the Street Department 
with the Lease paperwork through Mountain West Bank, authorizing the Mayor to sign all 
related documents. 

8) Pass Resolution #25-2025R – Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Equipment Lease 
Agreement and all other schedules attached thereto with Mountain West Bank for the 567 
Peterbilt Snowplow for the Streets Department, and Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign. 

9) Approve request to lease-purchase the 2026 Ford F-350 for the Street Department with the 
Lease paperwork through Mountain West Bank, authorizing the Mayor to sign all related 
documents. 

10) Pass Resolution #26-2025R – Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of an Equipment Lease 
Agreement and all other schedules attached thereto with Mountain West bank for the 2026 
Ford F-350 Fleet Truck for the Streets Department, and Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign.  

 
 Councilwoman Garvey made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as written. Councilwoman Wirkkala 
seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman 
Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Garvey; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda 
 
 There were no Items removed from the Consent Agenda for consideration. 

Page 51 of 360



##### 

Council Minutes – November 25, 2025 

 
 2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation and Finding 
of Facts for a conditional use permit to operate a Drive-up window located on a parcel addressed 1410 American 
Legion Boulevard (RPA3S06E252160) with conditions. 
 

Councilman Brennan said that he had a few questions and Mayor Sykes asked if Brenda Ellis, Senior City 
Planner, could come forward to assist with the discussion.  

 
Councilman Brennan raised concerns about stormwater retention on the property, noting past issues with 

standing water around the building. He said city staff told him there is an onsite City-owned stormwater drain, but 
its functionality is unclear. He asked whether the system is operational. 

 
Brenda Ellis asked Julie Buckley, the applicant for the permit, to come forward to join in the discussion as 

well.  
 
There was a discussion between Councilman Brennan, Brenda Ellis, Julie Buckley, and Chris Curtis, 

Public Works Director, regarding stormwater management on the property.  
 
Julie Buckley noted that the Water Department confirmed the onsite drain connects to the canal near the 

former Red Pavilion and that drainage from the parking lot and sidewalk flows toward neighboring parcels, 
functioning properly after repaving.  

 
Councilman Brennan asked why stormwater swales or retention ponds were not required, and Brenda 

Ellis explained that the existing pipe likely influenced the decision and that swales in landscaped buffers could 
suffice, with Public Works able to confirm.  

 
Chris Curtis added that Public Works would inspect the pipe to ensure it was flowing properly, as the City 

is responsible for its maintenance. 
 
There was a discussion between Brenda Ellis, Councilman Brennan, and Paul Fitzer regarding equivalent 

dwelling units and water connection fees.  
 
Councilman Brennan asked why the property, which was being built for two EDUs, one for office space 

and one for a soda shop, would only be assessed for one. 
 
Brenda Ellis confirmed the staff determination and explained that EDUs are tied to water and sewer.  
 
Brennan cited City Ordinance 7-1A-7, which requires a $2,450 water connection fee per additional EDU, 

and asked if the owners should pay for the second unit.  
 
Paul Fitzer confirmed that doing so would be lawful.  
 
Ellis clarified that the ordinance covers initial connections and changes in use, while section 71D-1 triggers 

a review and recalculation of EDUs for any building permit, expansion, or alteration, and she asked Legal to confirm 
that both initial availability fees and ongoing utility fees would apply.  

 
Fitzer explained that changes of use create additional burdens on the City’s water system, and the fees 

should reflect the property’s proportionate impact, ensuring other residents do not bear the cost. He confirmed the 
connection fee was justified.  

 
Ellis clarified that the water availability fee is the connection fee for water and sewer services, assessed 

based on EDUs.  
 
Fitzer stated he had no objection, noting it aligned with the principle of proportionate impact on the system. 

Page 52 of 360



##### 

Council Minutes – November 25, 2025 

Councilman Brennan addressed the request to delay the curb, gutter, and sidewalk installation. He noted 
he usually opposed delays but accepted it since the business would operate under a conditional use permit 
enforceable by the City, requiring completion by June 30. He also asked how water would be managed on the east 
side of the property to prevent runoff onto neighboring land. 

 
Julie Buckley stated that so far there had been no issues, and water from the property flowed to the onsite 

drain. She had not observed any water pooling and noted that the system appeared to be working properly. 
 
Councilman Brennan asked if ITD was requiring the closure of the westernmost access on American 

Legion Boulevard and whether that would involve installing curb and gutter or a barrier. 
 
Julie Buckley said that they were told to put a barrier of some sort in, whether it was planter boxes or a 

cement barricade, as long as it was clear to the motoring public that they could not go through. 
 
There was a discussion between Councilman Brennan, Julie Buckley, and Brenda Ellis regarding a 

landscaping waiver.  
 
Julie Buckley explained that, because the property is already established, they were concerned about 

sightlines on American Legion. She stated that the existing decorative rocks were acceptable and requested a 
waiver to keep the rocks along the side of the building, proposing potted plants closer to the building for easier and 
more cost-effective maintenance.  

 
Councilman Brennan clarified that the waiver would allow landscaping along the building’s edge, not 

between the building and the parking lot or the curved gutter sidewalk.  
 
Brenda Ellis confirmed that the applicants planned to place landscaping on the north and westerly sides 

of the building using potted plants rather than along the public road frontage buffer. 
 
Councilman Brennan stated that he had no objections with the request on the American Legion 

Boulevard/North 14th East side, however he felt that the East 4th North side could stand to use some landscaping 
as it would make a nice buffer. 

 
There was a discussion between Brenda Ellis and Councilman Brennan regarding landscaping near the 

property.  
 
Brenda Ellis asked if Councilman Brennan envisioned a five-foot sidewalk plus an additional five-foot 

grassy area to help blend the space between the commercial and residential areas, suggesting it could include tall 
grasses or other visually appealing landscaping.  

 
Councilman Brennan confirmed that he was satisfied with the additional five feet along with the sidewalk. 
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala asked if the landscaping would cut into the parking and Brenda Ellis confirmed 

that it would and then asked Julie Buckley to take the opportunity to discuss.  
 
Julie Buckley explained that they requested a landscaping variance on that side of the property due to the 

size of the building and the required number of parking spaces. She noted that adding landscaping there would 
reduce parking and increase costs, making it difficult to meet the minimum code requirements while still keeping 
the property attractive. 

 
Brenda Ellis noted that the applicant would be installing high-back curbs along 14th and Fourth Street, 

which could allow for additional on-street parking. She added that any further reduction in required parking would 
need legal review, as the approved site plan shows the number of spaces required under the current zoning. 

 
There was a discussion between Brenda Ellis and Mayor Sykes on what the parking requirements were 

Page 53 of 360



##### 

Council Minutes – November 25, 2025 

for the office space and the restaurant-use based on City code and how this establishment would not have inside 
seating as it would be drive-up only, which is why they felt it would be appropriate for reduction in parking spaces.  

 
There was discussion between Julie Buckley and Councilwoman Wirkkala regarding the plans for the 

barrier and if ITD was requiring them to do the barrier and if there were any requirements that were specified. 
 
Councilman Brennan and Julie Buckley had a discussion regarding parking spaces and number of spaces 

and the design guideline required. 
 
Councilman Harjo noted that during the public hearing, a citizen asked about deliveries at the back of the 

building. He mentioned that the issue had been addressed in the documentation but raised a question about the 
potential impact on children crossing American Legion near the business. He asked the applicant to explain the 
planning and organization of parking and the drive-thru to ensure pedestrian safety. 

 
Julie Buckley explained that adding sidewalks and a high curb would improve safety for children crossing 

the area, as cars currently have unrestricted access to the parking lot. She noted that keeping a 60-foot distance 
from the intersection would provide a safer path for pedestrians. 

 
Matt Buckley asked if he could come forward to join the discussion about delivery trucks. He stated that 

Cisco and their delivery drivers told him that delivery trucks would arrive between the hours of 6:00 am and 6:30 
am which wouldn’t cause an issue with pedestrians and children.  

 
Councilman Harjo noted that under Section 11, the proposed conditional use should not be hazardous or 

disturbing to neighboring uses. He referenced a draft cross-access agreement and the site plan showing stanchion 
barriers at the right-turn exit onto American Legion. He suggested that using stanchions with a bladelike design 
could help reduce potential nuisance from headlight glare and noise along the residential corridor, offering 
additional protection while serving their intended purpose. 

 
Councilman Brennan made a motion to approve  Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation 

and Finding of Facts for a conditional use permit to operate a Drive-up window located on a parcel addressed 1410 
American Legion Boulevard (RPA3S06E252160) with conditions and adding the condition of a requirement to pay 
one water service connection fee and adding a small landscaping strip of no less than 24 inches wide for the length 
of the property off East 4th North.  

 
Councilwoman Garvey asked what the second EDU was based on. 
 
Brenda Ellis explained that the resolution regarding equivalent dwelling units differentiates between 

business types, the chart lists food service, not food and beverage limits and since the property changed from 
office use to include a restaurant or beverage use, an additional EDU applies. 

 
Mayor Sykes reminded that there was a motion and asked if there was a second, hearing none, the motion 

died. 
 
Mayor Sykes asked whether the City had ever charged another business the hookup fees when they 

changed their use, noting that EDUs were charged but questioning if the hookup fee had ever been applied. 
 
Brenda Ellis stated that in her experience with the City, she did not recall any instance where a business 

was charged the hookup fee for a change of use. However, after reviewing the code and consulting legal counsel, 
she confirmed that it is the legal interpretation that the fee should apply. 

 
Matt Buckley explained that the current parking layout is the only way to fit the required number of stalls 

on the property, which is still smaller than some other nearby sites like the new noodle place. He expressed concern 
that reducing the lot by two more feet for larger sidewalks and curbing could make backing out unsafe. He proposed 
paying the fee if it might allow eliminating that adjustment. 

Page 54 of 360



##### 

Council Minutes – November 25, 2025 

 
Councilwoman Wirkkala noted that, given the city’s lack of compact vehicles, backing out of the lot could 

be difficult, especially for larger vehicles. She stated she was fine with the proposed landscaping plan, which 
includes decorative rock along the north side of the building and potted plants there and on the west side, as it 
meets landscaping intent and enhances the property’s appearance. 

 
Councilman Brennan asked Paul Fitzer for a legal opinion on whether not charging the additional 

connection fee, despite the ordinance stating that it “shall” be paid, would create an undue burden on the public, 
noting that City staff might argue it has never been enforced that way before.  

 
Paul Fitzer explained that if the City Council approves the project without assessing the water service 

availability fee, it should be framed as granting a waiver. He noted that, while the fee is typically assessed like an 
impact fee, this business does not create the same burden due to no seating and limited use. He cautioned that 
the 12 to 14 parking spots could justify a second EDU if fully used. He emphasized the waiver should not reduce 
the total number of EDUs available for the City; if it does, the fee should be assessed. Otherwise, the waiver is 
appropriate because the property does not impose the full burden of an EDU. 

 
Councilman Harjo noted that the conditional use permit before the council was specifically for the drive-

thru. He emphasized that this limited the scope of any assessment related to the drive-thru itself, rather than the 
overall business operations or the assignment of EDUs, even though EDUs were referenced in the findings of fact. 
The purpose of the permit, he stressed, was to decide for or against the drive-thru use. 

 
Councilman Brennan addressed Matt Buckley, while he appreciated the earlier comments and willingness 

to compromise, he believed it was in the best interest of the community to assess the second EDU. He offered to 
negotiate by accepting payment of one water service connection fee along with all other Planning and Zoning 
recommendations, in exchange for waiving the two-foot parking setback requirement. 

 
Councilman Brennan made a motion to approve Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation and 

Finding of Facts for a conditional use permit to operate a Drive-up window located on a parcel addressed 1410 
American Legion Boulevard (RPA3S06E252160) with conditions and add in the condition that the applicant pay 
for one water service connection fee. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: 
Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilman Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The 
motion passed by unanimous vote.  

 
FINAL COMMENTS 
 
 Mayor Sykes wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving.   
 
ADJOURN 
 
 There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 5:51 p.m. by 
orders from Mayor Sykes. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

       ___________________________________   
       Rich Sykes, Mayor  
 
  
 

Page 55 of 360



##### 

Council Minutes – November 25, 2025 

ATTEST:  _______________________________ 
         Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 56 of 360



Page 57 of 360



Page 58 of 360



Page 59 of 360



Page 60 of 360



Page 61 of 360



Page 62 of 360



Page 63 of 360



Page 64 of 360



Page 65 of 360



Page 66 of 360



Page 67 of 360



Page 68 of 360



Page 69 of 360



Page 70 of 360



Page 71 of 360



Page 72 of 360



Page 73 of 360



Page 74 of 360

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight



Page 75 of 360



Page 76 of 360



Page 1 of 3
Reporting Entity Name, Mailing Address and Contact Phone Number:

PO Box 10 

Contact/Phone Number:
                                  (208)587-2104

This certified report of dedicated funds is hereby submitted to the State Controller as required by 40-708, Idaho code.

Dated this _________ day of_________________________, __________. Commissioner Signature

ATTEST: Commissioner Signature

Clerk/Treasurer Signature Mayor or Commissioner Signature
City Clerk/County Clerk/District Secretary (type or print name & sign)                AND Commissioners or Mayor (type or print name & sign)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, __________________ 2025

Line 1 BEGINNING BALANCE - Balance from Previous Year's Report 3,222,221                                         

RECEIPTS

LOCAL FUNDING SOURCES

Line 2      Property tax levy (for roads, streets and bridges) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .250,083                                            

Line 3      Sale of assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 4      Interest income . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97,033                                              

Line 5      Fund transfers from non-highway accounts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 6      Proceeds from sale of bonds (include LIDs) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 7      Proceeds from issue of notes (include loans) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 8      Local impact fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 209,756                                            

Line 9      Local option registration fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 10      All other LOCAL receipts or transfers in. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62,363                                              

Line 11           Total Local Funding (sum lines 2 through 10). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 619,235                                            

STATE FUNDING SOURCES

Line 12      Highway user revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,314,329                                         

Line 13     Sales tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 134,413                                            

Line 14     General fund/Leading Idaho . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 393,158                                            

Line 15      Sales tax/Inventory replacement tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 16      Sales tax/Revenue sharing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 17      State Exchanged funds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 18      All other STATE receipts or transfers. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 19           Total State Funding (sum lines 12 through 19). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . 1,841,900                                         

FEDERAL FUNDING SOURCES

Line 20a      Secure Rural Schools (Title I Funds)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 20b      Secure Rural Schools (Title III Funds) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 21      Federal-aid Bridge. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 22      Federal-aid Rural. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 23      Federal-aid Urban. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 24      Federal Lands Access Funds and All other FEDERAL receipts or transfers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 25               Total Federal Funding (sum lines 20 through 25) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 26               TOTAL RECEIPTS (sum lines 11, 19, 25) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,461,135                                         

DISBURSEMENTS Page 2 of 3

Annual Road and Street Financial Report

Entity 
City of Mountain Home

City State Zip
Mountain Home, ID 83647

Address

Please return, not later than December 31, to:

Contact/Email: tbelt@mountain-home.us

BRANDON D. WOOLF

IDAHO STATE CONTROLLER

ATTN: HIGHWAY USERS

STATEHOUSE MAIL 

BOISE, ID  83720

Revised September 2022Page 77 of 360

Pg 76



NEW CONSTRUCTION (include salary and benefits on each line) -                                                   

        Total lane miles constructed in the last year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

        Total square feet of bridge deck constructed in the last year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 27      Roads . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .-                                                   

Line 28      Bridges, culverts and storm drainage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .-                                                   

Line 29      RR Crossing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .-                                                   

Line 30     Other (signs, signals or traffic control). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 31           Total New Construction (sum lines 27 through 30). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .-                                                   

RECONSTRUCTION/REPLACEMENT/REHABILITATION (include salary and benefits on each line)

        Total lane miles rebuilt, realigned, or overlay in the last year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 893,486                                            

        Total square feet of bridge deck reconstructed or rehabilitated in the last year. . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 32      Roads (rebuilt, realign, or overlay upgrade). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 33      Bridges, culverts and storm drainage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 34      RR Crossing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 35       Other (signs, signals or traffic control). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,736                                              

Line 36           Total Reconstruction/Replacement (sum lines 32 through 35). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 912,222                                            

ROUTINE MAINTENANCE  (include salary and benefits on each line)

         Total lane miles with surface treatments, chip sealed, seal coated etc. on line 37. . . . . . . . 1.1                                                   

         Total lane miles graded or bladed on line 40 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 37      Chip sealing or seal coating. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93,570                                              

Line 38      Patching . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,286                                              

Line 39      Winter Maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,005                                              

Line 40      Grading/blading . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 41      Bridge. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   
Line 42      Other (signs, signals or traffic control). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 141,237                                            

Line 43           Total Routine Maintenance (sum lines 37 through 42) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 290,099                                            

EQUIPMENT

Line 44      Equipment purchase - automotive, heavy, other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 45      Equipment lease/purchase . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127,598                                            

Line 46      Equipment maintenance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111,058                                            
Line 47      Other (specify). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 208                                                   

Line 48           Total Equipment (sum lines 44 through 47) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 238,864                                            

ADMINISTRATION

Line 49      Administrative salaries and expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,478                                              

OTHER EXPENDITURES

Line 50      Right-of-way and property purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 51      Property leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 52      Street lighting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 53      Professional services - audit, clerical, and legal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 54      Professional services - engineering. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,616                                              

Line 55      Interest - bond (include LIDs). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 56      Interest - notes (include loans). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 57      Redemption - bond (include LIDs) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 58      Redemption - notes (include loans) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 59      Payments to other local government. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 60      Fund transfers to non-highway accounts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 61      All other local expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57,898                                              

Line 62           Total Other (sum lines 50 through 61) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73,514                                              

Line 63 TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS (sum lines 31, 36, 43, 48, 49, 62). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,548,177                                         

Line 64 RECEIPTS OVER DISBURSEMENTS (line 26 - line 63). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 912,958                                            

Line 65 OTHER ADJUSTMENTS (Audit adjustment and etc.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -                                                   

Line 66 CLOSING BALANCE (sum lines 1, 64, 65)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,135,179                                         

Line 67 Funds on Line 66 obligated for specific future projects & reserves. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,276,416                                         

Line 68 Funds on Line 66 retained for general funds and operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0

Line 69 ENDING BALANCE (line 66 minus the sum of lines 67, 68) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,276,416                                         

PROJECTS Page 3 of 3

FUTURE PROJECTS & RESERVE DESCRIPTIONS Revised September 2022Page 78 of 360



Project List Start Year Projected Cost

Right of way sidewalksRight of way sidewalks 2026 100,000                                                      

ADA Sidewalk RampsADA Sidewalk Ramps 2026 100,000                                                      

Sidewalk repairsSidewalk repairsSidewalk repairs 2026 100,000                                                      

Deferred maintenance costs over the last 5 years (in dollars).  1,000,000

Revised September 2022Page 79 of 360



Page 80 of 360



Page 81 of 360



Page 82 of 360



Resolution #29-2025R – Page 1 
 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 
ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO 

RESOLUTION NO. #29-2025R 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, ESTABLISHING AN INCREASE IN THE 
MONTHLY GARBAGE/RECYCLING FEES EFFECTIVE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2026. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO,   
as follows: 

1. MONTHLY GARBAGE/RECYCLING FEES. 

As provided and permitted by Mountain Home City Code Sections 7-3-8 and 7-3-9, Chapter 3, 
Title 7, the following monthly garbage/recycling fees are hereby established to be effective January 1, 
2026. 

Service Charges     Current Monthly Fees New Monthly Fees 
Trash & Recycling City Residential (95 Gal) $21.27 monthly  $22.28 monthly 
Trash & Recycling City Residential (65 Gal) $16.64 monthly  $17.43 monthly 
Trash & Recycling City Residential (48 Gal) $16.64 monthly  $17.43 monthly 
Carry out Service (any size totes)  $5.77 monthly  $6.04 monthly 
Additional Tote (any size totes)   $2.29 monthly  $2.40 monthly 

 
      Commercial Trash & Recycling City Commercial-  
  All Commercial rates        4.75% increase  
 

  PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this _____day of December 2025. 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this _____ day of December 2025. 
 

 
 
 _ ________________ 
 Rich Sykes, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
        
      (SEAL) 
 
____  ____   
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 83 of 360



 

  

11101 W. Executive Drive, Boise, ID 83813 
O: 208-761-2931  E: mmingura@republicservices.com   

 November 25, 2025 
 
Mayor Rich Sykes 
City of Mountain Home 
160 S 3rd E St. 
Mountain Home, ID 83647 
 
 
Dear Mayor Sykes, 
 
As provided in Exhibit B Price Escalation Factor of the Waste Collection Services with the 
City of Mountain Home, we calculated the annual rate adjustment based on the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the U.S. City Average - All Urban Consumers Index, 
Expense Category Garbage/Trash, as published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau 
of Labor Statistics.  
 
The CPI change for the previous twelve-month period ending in September 2025 is 
5.36%.   
 
However, we are requesting an increase of 4.75%, effective January 1, 2026. Please refer 
to attached rates.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know. We appreciate the 
opportunity to serve your community. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Margaret Mingura 
Finance Manager, Republic Services 

Page 84 of 360



Bureau of Labor Statistics

Series Id:

Series Title:

Area:

Item:

Base Period:

Years:

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec HALF1 HALF2

2015 427.734 429.248 429.235 429.807 431.234 430.813 431.229 432.967 433.843 434.829 436.428 436.996

2016 437.205 438.296 437.699 437.676 438.317 437.858 438.607 439.358 439.707 440.311 443.343 444.745

2017 446.266 447.699 446.987 447.129 447.272 448.046 448.328 448.717 449.008 452.196 453.820 453.596

2018 453.354 454.915 455.230 458.722 462.887 465.041 465.579 470.457 471.026 472.535 486.650 485.935 458.358 475.364

2019 475.687 477.474 478.569 479.449 480.865 480.984 482.138 483.987 484.346 486.133 486.485 486.708 478.838 484.966

2020 491.003 494.429 495.288 494.432 494.946 496.679 498.564 500.882 501.756 503.315 504.970 508.190 494.463 502.946

2021 512.722 517.270 518.505 518.579 516.440 517.202 521.185 524.408 529.934 530.114 529.053 532.538 516.786 527.872

2022 533.078 538.313 540.719 542.564 544.546 547.554 548.187 548.706 558.254 561.090 563.816 565.185 541.129 557.540

2023 570.412 575.697 576.773 580.124 587.431 589.812 596.167 597.347 596.997 597.569 601.631 602.164 580.042 598.646

2024 606.773 610.551 610.015 611.073 609.538 611.946 614.089 615.880 619.640 621.632 627.127 627.807 609.983 621.029

2025 629.803 641.938 642.053 643.063 646.507 648.477 652.682 656.067 652.831 641.974

Index Change 33.191

Percent Change 5.36%

Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U)

Original Data Value

CUUR0000SEHG02

Not Seasonally Adjusted

Garbage and trash collection in U.S. city average, all 
urban consumers, not seasonally adjustedU.S. city average

Garbage and trash collection

DECEMBER 1983=100

2015 to 2025

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics Generated on: November 21, 2025 (12:52:06 PM)

Page 85 of 360



Frequency Extra 1 Cart 2 Carts 3 Carts 4 Carts 5 Carts

1 x week 7.89 17.33 34.66 51.99 69.32 86.65

Delivery Extra 1 x month EOW 1 x week

29.71 42.87 not available not available 58.22

29.71 69.03 not available not available 119.48

29.71 94.60 not available not available 161.49

2 x week 3 x week 4 x week 5 x week 6 x week

116.35 174.45 232.57 290.66 unavailable

238.74 358.02 477.33 596.62 unavailable

322.80 484.15 645.46 806.75 unavailable

Delivery Service
Monthly

Rent
Daily
Rent

Tax
on Rent

29.71 22.18 11.86 0.39 6%

Size Delivery Haul
Regular
per Ton

C&D
per Ton

Asbestos
per Ton

Monthly
Rent

Daily
Rent

Tax
on Rent

20 116.03 199.85 65.00 65.00 65.00 97.35 3.20 6%

30 116.03 294.75 65.00 65.00 65.00 145.09 4.77 6%

Compactors - 294.75 65.00 - - - - -

Lid Replacement

Relocation - Any Size

41.86

96.63

Steam Clean 143.57

Mountain Home City Rates
Billed Monthly by Republic Services

Monthly Rates Effective 01/01/26

Size

Commercial MSW Carts

Commercial Temp On Call

8

Commercial MSW - 2 x week thru 5 x week

Commercial MSW - Delivery thru 1 x week
Size

3

6

Size

3

Lid Lock Installation

7.89

Large Item

7.89

Additional Service Per Yard - 5 Minutes

Cart Replacement

22.62

79.98

90.38

Dead Animal Removal 73.81

40.48

3

Industrial RO

6

8

Late Cans

Miscellaneous

Extra Pickup - Residential

Page 86 of 360



Extra 1 Cart 2 Carts 3 Carts 4 Carts 5 Carts 6 Carts

8.26 9.94 14.24 18.54 22.84 27.10 31.38

Delivery Extra 1 x month EOW 1 x week

28.33 22.18 50.70 65.38 86.74

28.33 36.23 not available 108.49 135.42

28.33 49.59 not available not available 179.39

Delivery Haul
Monthly

Rent
Daily
Rent

Tax
on Rent

111.95 294.75 97.35 3.20 6%

111.95 294.75 145.09 4.77 6%

- 294.75 - - -

Size

20

30

Compactors

Industrial IR

8

Commercial RCY - Thursdays only
Size

3

6

Frequency

1 x week

Commercial RCY Carts

Page 87 of 360



Residential MSW & RCY Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
regular curbside 1 95 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      13.47     4.30     17.77      0.26 18.03   
regular curbside 2 95 gallon solid waste carts - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      13.47     6.45     19.92      0.39 20.31   
carryout/drive-in 1 95 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      19.47     4.30     23.77      0.26 24.03   

regular curbside 1 48 or 65 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      11.84     4.30     16.14      0.26 16.40   
regular curbside 2 48 or 65 gallon solid waste carts - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      11.84     6.45     18.29      0.39 18.68   
carryout/drive-in 1 48 or 65 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart -         -      -          -   -      17.84     4.30     22.14      0.26 22.40   

each additional cart -         -      -          -   -      -         2.15     2.15        0.13 2.28     

Commercial MSW Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
extra pickup per container 7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     

1 cart 1 x week 15.05     2.15     17.20      0.13 17.33   15.05     2.15     17.20      0.13 17.33   
2 carts 1 x week 30.10     4.30     34.40      0.26 34.66   30.10     4.30     34.40      0.26 34.66   
3 carts 1 x week 45.15     6.45     51.60      0.39 51.99   45.15     6.45     51.60      0.39 51.99   
4 carts 1 x week 60.20     8.60     68.80      0.52 69.32   60.20     8.60     68.80      0.52 69.32   
5 carts 1 x week 75.25     10.75   86.00      0.65 86.65   75.25     10.75   86.00      0.65 86.65   

delivery charge per container 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 42.87     -      42.87      -   42.87   42.87     -      42.87      -   42.87   

1 3yd 2 x month NO LONGER OFFERED 18.43     11.86   30.29      0.71 31.00   18.43     11.86   30.29      0.71 31.00   
1 3yd 1 x week 45.65     11.86   57.51      0.71 58.22   45.65     11.86   57.51      0.71 58.22   
1 3yd 2 x week 103.78   11.86   115.64    0.71 116.35 103.78   11.86   115.64    0.71 116.35 
1 3yd 3 x week 161.88   11.86   173.74    0.71 174.45 161.88   11.86   173.74    0.71 174.45 
1 3yd 4 x week 220.00   11.86   231.86    0.71 232.57 220.00   11.86   231.86    0.71 232.57 
1 3yd 5 x week 278.09   11.86   289.95    0.71 290.66 278.09   11.86   289.95    0.71 290.66 
1 3yd 6 x week 336.37   11.86   348.23    0.71 348.94 336.37   11.86   348.23    0.71 348.94 

delivery charge per container NO LONGER OFFERED 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 54.28     -      54.28      -   54.28   54.28     -      54.28      -   54.28   

1 4yd 1 x week 64.26     13.57   77.83      0.81 78.64   64.26     13.57   77.83      0.81 78.64   
1 4yd 2 x week 142.75   13.57   156.32    0.81 157.13 142.75   13.57   156.32    0.81 157.13 
1 4yd 3 x week 221.26   13.57   234.83    0.81 235.64 221.26   13.57   234.83    0.81 235.64 
1 4yd 4 x week 299.78   13.57   313.35    0.81 314.16 299.78   13.57   313.35    0.81 314.16 
1 4yd 5 x week 378.29   13.57   391.86    0.81 392.67 378.29   13.57   391.86    0.81 392.67 
1 4yd 6 x week 471.05   13.57   484.62    0.81 485.43 471.05   13.57   484.62    0.81 485.43 

delivery charge per container 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 69.03     -      69.03      -   69.03   69.03     -      69.03      -   69.03   

1 6yd 2 x month NO LONGER OFFERED 42.43     16.34   58.77      0.98 59.75   42.43     16.34   58.77      0.98 59.75   
1 6yd 1 x week 102.16   16.34   118.50    0.98 119.48 102.16   16.34   118.50    0.98 119.48 
1 6yd 2 x week 221.42   16.34   237.76    0.98 238.74 221.42   16.34   237.76    0.98 238.74 
1 6yd 3 x week 340.70   16.34   357.04    0.98 358.02 340.70   16.34   357.04    0.98 358.02 
1 6yd 4 x week 460.01   16.34   476.35    0.98 477.33 460.01   16.34   476.35    0.98 477.33 
1 6yd 5 x week 579.30   16.34   595.64    0.98 596.62 579.30   16.34   595.64    0.98 596.62 
1 6yd 6 x week 698.59   16.34   714.93    0.98 715.91 698.59   16.34   714.93    0.98 715.91 

delivery charge per container 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
extra pickup per container 94.60     -      94.60      -   94.60   94.60     -      94.60      -   94.60   

1 8yd 1 x week 142.08   18.31   160.39    1.10 161.49 142.08   18.31   160.39    1.10 161.49 
1 8yd 2 x week 303.39   18.31   321.70    1.10 322.80 303.39   18.31   321.70    1.10 322.80 
1 8yd 3 x week 464.74   18.31   483.05    1.10 484.15 464.74   18.31   483.05    1.10 484.15 
1 8yd 4 x week 626.05   18.31   644.36    1.10 645.46 626.05   18.31   644.36    1.10 645.46 
1 8yd 5 x week 787.34   18.31   805.65    1.10 806.75 787.34   18.31   805.65    1.10 806.75 
1 8yd 6 x week 948.66   18.31   966.97    1.10 968.07 948.66   18.31   966.97    1.10 968.07 

extra pickup per container 57.63     -      57.63      -   57.63   57.63     -      57.63      -   57.63   
1 6yd compactor 1 x week 145.52   -      145.52    -   145.52 145.52   -      145.52    -   145.52 
1 6yd compactor 2 x week 291.04   -      291.04    -   291.04 291.04   -      291.04    -   291.04 
1 6yd compactor 3 x week 383.53   -      383.53    -   383.53 383.53   -      383.53    -   383.53 

Commercial Temp On Call Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
3yd delivery 29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   29.71     -      29.71      -   29.71   
3yd regular 22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   

3yd monthly rental -         11.86   11.86      0.71 12.57   -         11.86   11.86      0.71 12.57   
3yd daily rental -         0.39     0.39        0.02 0.41     -         0.39     0.39        0.02 0.41     

Mountain Home City Rates effective 01/01/26
RepublicCustomer

Page 88 of 360



Mountain Home City Rates effective 01/01/26
RepublicCustomer

Commercial RCY Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
extra pickup per container 8.26       -      8.26        -   8.26     8.26       -      8.26        -   8.26     

1 cart 1 x week 7.66       2.15     9.81        0.13 9.94     7.66       2.15     9.81        0.13 9.94     
2 carts 1 x week 9.68       4.30     13.98      0.26 14.24   9.68       4.30     13.98      0.26 14.24   
3 carts 1 x week 11.70     6.45     18.15      0.39 18.54   11.70     6.45     18.15      0.39 18.54   
4 carts 1 x week 13.72     8.60     22.32      0.52 22.84   13.72     8.60     22.32      0.52 22.84   
5 carts 1 x week 15.70     10.75   26.45      0.65 27.10   15.70     10.75   26.45      0.65 27.10   
6 carts 1 x week 17.71     12.90   30.61      0.77 31.38   17.71     12.90   30.61      0.77 31.38   

delivery charge per container 28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   
extra pickup per container 22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   22.18     -      22.18      -   22.18   

1 3yd 1 x month 30.13     19.41   49.54      1.16 50.70   30.13     19.41   49.54      1.16 50.70   
1 3yd 2 x month 44.81     19.41   64.22      1.16 65.38   44.81     19.41   64.22      1.16 65.38   
1 3yd 1 x week 66.17     19.41   85.58      1.16 86.74   66.17     19.41   85.58      1.16 86.74   
1 3yd 2 x week 116.80   19.41   136.21    1.16 137.37 116.80   19.41   136.21    1.16 137.37 
1 3yd 3 x week 170.67   19.41   190.08    1.16 191.24 170.67   19.41   190.08    1.16 191.24 
1 3yd 4 x week 226.28   19.41   245.69    1.16 246.85 226.28   19.41   245.69    1.16 246.85 
1 3yd 5 x week 284.13   19.41   303.54    1.16 304.70 284.13   19.41   303.54    1.16 304.70 

delivery charge per container 28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   
extra pickup per container 36.23     -      36.23      -   36.23   36.23     -      36.23      -   36.23   

1 6yd 2 x month 67.66     38.52   106.18    2.31 108.49 67.66     38.52   106.18    2.31 108.49 
1 6yd 1 x week 94.59     38.52   133.11    2.31 135.42 94.59     38.52   133.11    2.31 135.42 
1 6yd 2 x week 194.92   38.52   233.44    2.31 235.75 194.92   38.52   233.44    2.31 235.75 
1 6yd 3 x week 304.09   38.52   342.61    2.31 344.92 304.09   38.52   342.61    2.31 344.92 
1 6yd 4 x week 406.15   38.52   444.67    2.31 446.98 406.15   38.52   444.67    2.31 446.98 
1 6yd 5 x week 494.02   38.52   532.54    2.31 534.85 494.02   38.52   532.54    2.31 534.85 

delivery charge per container 28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   28.33     -      28.33      -   28.33   
extra pickup per container 49.59     -      49.59      -   49.59   49.59     -      49.59      -   49.59   

1 8yd 1 x week 127.41   49.04   176.45    2.94 179.39 127.41   49.04   176.45    2.94 179.39 
1 8yd 2 x week 260.84   49.04   309.88    2.94 312.82 260.84   49.04   309.88    2.94 312.82 
1 8yd 3 x week 383.48   49.04   432.52    2.94 435.46 383.48   49.04   432.52    2.94 435.46 
1 8yd 4 x week 491.61   49.04   540.65    2.94 543.59 491.61   49.04   540.65    2.94 543.59 
1 8yd 5 x week 608.81   49.04   657.85    2.94 660.79 608.81   49.04   657.85    2.94 660.79 

Page 89 of 360



Mountain Home City Rates effective 01/01/26
RepublicCustomer

Industrial RO
 Disposal 
per ton 

Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total  Disposal Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total

20yd delivery -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 
20yd msw haul 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 
20yd c&d haul 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 

20yd asbestos haul 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 65.00     199.85   -      199.85    -   199.85 
20yd monthly rent -         -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 -         -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 

20yd daily rent -         -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     -         -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     

30yd delivery -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 -         116.03   -      116.03    -   116.03 
30yd msw haul 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
30yd c&d haul 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 

30yd asbestos haul 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
30yd monthly rent -         -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 -         -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 

30yd daily rent -         -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     -         -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     

compactors 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 65.00     294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 

Industrial IR Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
20yd delivery 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 

20yd regular haul 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
20yd monthly rent -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 -         97.35   97.35      5.84 103.19 

20yd daily rent -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     -         3.20     3.20        0.19 3.39     

30yd delivery 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 111.95   -      111.95    -   111.95 
30yd regular haul 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 
30yd monthly rent -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 -         145.09 145.09    8.71 153.80 

30yd daily rent -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     -         4.77     4.77        0.29 5.06     

compactors 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 294.75   -      294.75    -   294.75 

Miscellaneous Service Rent Subtotal  Tax Total Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total
additional service per yard - 5 minutes 22.62     -      22.62      -   22.62   22.62     -      22.62      -   22.62   

cart replacement 75.45     -      75.45      4.53 79.98   75.45     -      75.45      4.53 79.98   
dead animal removal 73.81     -      73.81      -   73.81   73.81     -      73.81      -   73.81   

extra pickup - residential 7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     
large item 40.48     -      40.48      -   40.48   40.48     -      40.48      -   40.48   
late cans 7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     7.89       -      7.89        -   7.89     

lid lock installation 90.38     -      90.38      -   90.38   90.38     -      90.38      -   90.38   
lid replacement 41.86     -      41.86      -   41.86   41.86     -      41.86      -   41.86   

relocation - any size 96.63     -      96.63      -   96.63   96.63     -      96.63      -   96.63   
steam clean 143.57   -      143.57    -   143.57 143.57   -      143.57    -   143.57 

Page 90 of 360



2022 Rate increase:  2.98%

17.75$    0.52895 18.28$    Residential 18.30$    

4.80$      0.14304 4.94$      Carryout 4.95$      

1.82$      0.054236 1.87$      Additional Tote 1.90$      

2023 Rate increase: 4.77%

18.30$    0.87$              19.17$    Residential 19.20$    

4.95$      0.24$              5.19$      Carryout 5.20$      

1.90$      0.09$              1.99$      Additional Tote 2.00$      

21.36$    1.02$              22.38$    City Rate 22.40$    

2024 Rate increase: 6.5%

19.20$    1.25$              20.45$    Residential 20.45$    

5.20$      0.35$              5.55$      Carryout 5.55$      

2.09$      0.11$              2.20$      Additional Tote 2.20$      

18.30$    0.87$              19.17$    City Rate 19.17$    

-$               

22.40$    1.46$              23.86$    Commercial Rate 23.50$    

2025 Rate increase: 4.03%

20.45$    0.82$              21.27$    Residential (95 gallon) 21.27$    

16.00$    0.64$              16.64$    Residential (65 gallon) 16.64$    

16.00$    0.64$              16.64$    Residential (48 gallon) 16.64$    

5.55$      0.22$              5.77$      Carryout 5.77$      

2.20$      0.09$              2.29$      Additional Tote 2.29$      

19.17$    0.77$              19.94$    City Rate 19.94$    

23.50$    0.95$              24.45$    Commercial Rate 23.50$    

2026 Rate increase: 4.75%

21.27$    1.01$              22.28$    Residential (95 gallon) 22.28$    

16.64$    0.79$              17.43$    Residential (65 gallon) 17.43$    

16.64$    0.79$              17.43$    Residential (48 gallon) 17.43$    

5.77$      0.27$              6.04$      Carryout 6.04$      

2.29$      0.11$              2.40$      Additional Tote 2.40$      

19.94$    0.95$              20.89$    City Rate 20.89$    

23.50$    1.12$              24.62$    Commercial Rate 24.62$    

Republic Services Cost 

Service Rent Subtotal Tax Total City Staff/Material

regular curbside 1 95 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart 13.47$            4.30$      17.77$      0.26$        18.03$    4.25$                   

regular curbside 1 65 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart 11.84$            4.30$      16.14$      0.26$        16.40$    1.03$                   

regular curbside 1 48 gallon solid waste cart - 1 recycling cart 11.84$            4.30$      16.14$      0.26$        16.40$    1.03$                   

Page 91 of 360



Page 92 of 360



Page 93 of 360



Page 94 of 360



Page 95 of 360



Page 96 of 360



Page 97 of 360



Page 98 of 360



Page 99 of 360



Page 100 of 360



Page 101 of 360



Page 102 of 360



Page 103 of 360



Page 104 of 360



Page 105 of 360



Page 106 of 360



Page 107 of 360



Page 108 of 360



Page 109 of 360



Page 110 of 360



Page 111 of 360



Page 112 of 360



Page 113 of 360



Page 114 of 360



Page 115 of 360



Page 116 of 360



Page 117 of 360



Page 118 of 360



Page 119 of 360



Page 120 of 360



Page 121 of 360



Page 122 of 360



Page 123 of 360



Page 124 of 360



Page 125 of 360



AGREEMENT FOR LOCATION AWARENESS TRACKING DEVICE SERVICES - 1  

AGREEMENT FOR LOCATION AWARENESS TRACKING DEVICE SERVICES 

 

This Agreement For Location Awareness Tracking Device Services ("Agreement") is made and 

entered into this    day of  , 2025 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City 

of Mountain Home, Idaho, a city within Elmore County, Idaho, incorporated under Idaho 

Constitution Article XII, §1 (“City”), and Azuga,Inc., a California corporation with its principal 

place of business at 42840 Christy Street, Fremont, California (hereinafter “Provider” or 

“Azuga” and (collectively, the “Parties”). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

are hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the recitals above which are 

incorporated herein, City and Azuga represent, covenant, undertake and agree as follows: 

1. Purpose 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with GPS-based location awareness 

tracking devices and associated software and support services to monitor City vehicular use for 

operational, safety, and accountability purposes. 

2. Scope of Services 

Provider agrees to furnish GPS based location equipment as more fully detailed in the attached 

Order Form. 

3. Term 

This Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue for a thirty-six (36) month term 

unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 9. 

4. Compensation 

City shall pay Provider in the amounts as provided in the attached Order Form. Invoices will be 

submitted monthly and paid within thirty (30) days of receipt. 

5. Subscription Terms, Special Terms, Amendments, Precedence. 

(a) Subscription Terms. Unless otherwise provided herein, this Agreement is subject to, 

and incorporates the Azuga Master Agreement and all referenced and applicable 

related terms (found here: https://www.azuga.com/license-agreement) including the 

provisions set forth in the subheadings entitled “Acceptance & Explanation”; “Third 

Party Terms”, “Privacy Policy”, General Terms; Service Schedules”, “Data 

Processing Addendum”, and “Changes”. 

(b) Special Terms.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 5(a) (Subscription 

Terms), above, the parties have agreed that, for purposes of this Agreement, a number 

of concessions and variations to the Azuga Master Agreement are agreed to and are 

hereby incorporated into “Amendment 1 to the Azuga Master Agreement” attached 

hereto as Exhibit A. 

(c) Amendments. Any future amendments or variations of this Agreement must be in 

Page 126 of 360

https://www.azuga.com/license-agreement


AGREEMENT FOR LOCATION AWARENESS TRACKING DEVICE SERVICES - 2  

writing and mutually executed by the parties as additional, and sequential, 

amendments. No changes to terms written into either a Purchase Order or Order Form 

shall be deemed valid or effective. 

(d) Precedence. With respect to conflicts of terms within the documents the following 

precedence shall apply to the various documents contained in this Agreement (in 

order of hierarchy). 

1. This Agreement (“Agreement for Location Awareness Tracking Device 

Services”) 

2. Amendment 1 to the Azuga Master Agreement 

3. Azuga Master Agreement  

4. Order Form(s) 

6. Data Ownership and Privacy 

All data collected through the tracking devices shall remain the sole property of the City. 

Provider shall not share, sell, or distribute location data without prior written consent of the City. 

Provider shall implement appropriate cybersecurity measures to protect sensitive data. 

7. Compliance with Law 

Provider shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, including those 

concerning data privacy, public records, and employee monitoring where applicable. 

8. Indemnification 

Provider hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless City from and against 

any and all liabilities, costs and/or expenses including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, in connection with damages, losses, injuries, and/or death to persons which may be asserted 

against City, City’s members, employees, representatives, and/or agents, arising out of or in 

relation to the performance of this Agreement, except to the extent (if any) such liabilities, costs 

or expenses are caused by, arise out of, result from or relate to City’s own negligence or 

intentional misconduct. 

9. Termination 

Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause with thirty (30) days written 

notice. The City may terminate for cause immediately if Provider fails to perform essential 

services. 

10. Independent Contractor 

Provider is an independent contractor and not an employee, agent, or representative of the City. 

11. Notices 

All notices, demands, requests, and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing 

and shall be deemed properly served or delivered, if delivered by hand to the party to whose 

attention it is directed, or if sent via U.S. mail, then three (3) days following deposit therein, 

certified mail, return receipt requested, or if sent via facsimile transmission, when received as 

confirmed by the date and time stamp on such facsimile transmission, addressed as follows: 

(a) If to City: 

Page 127 of 360



AGREEMENT FOR LOCATION AWARENESS TRACKING DEVICE SERVICES - 3  

City of Mountain 

Home 160 South 

3rd West 

PO Box 10 

Mountain Home, Idaho 83647 

 

(b) If to Azuga: 

 

Azuga, Inc. 

42840 Christy Street 

Fremont, California 94538 

Attn: General Counsel 

12. Miscellaneous 

(a) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each 

of which shall constitute an original, but all together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

(b) Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between 

the parties and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings, written or oral. No extension, 

change, modification or amendment to or of this Agreement of any kind whatsoever shall be made 

or claimed by either Party, and no notice of any extension, change, modification or amendment 

made or claimed by either Party shall have any force or effect whatsoever unless the same shall be 

endorsed in writing and be signed by the party against which the enforcement of such extension, 

change, modification or amendment is sought, and then only to the extent set forth in such 

instrument. 

(c) Legal Representation. All Parties have been represented by separate legal counsel 

in this matter. Thus, in all cases, the language herein shall be construed simply and in accordance 
with its fair meaning and not strictly for or against a party, regardless of which party prepared or caused the 

preparation of this Agreement. 

(d) Captions. The captions at the beginning of the several paragraphs, respectively, 

are for convenience in locating the context, but are not part of the text. 

(e) Invalid Provisions. In the event any term or provision of this Agreement shall be 

held illegal, invalid or unenforceable or inoperative as a matter of law, the remaining terms and 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, but each such term and provision shall 

be valid and shall remain in full force and effect. 

(f) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Idaho, without regard to conflicts of laws principles. 

(g) Attorneys’ Fees. If either party shall default in the full and timely performance of 

this Agreement and said default is cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party and 

before the commencement of a suit thereon, as a part of curing said default, the reasonable 

attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be reimbursed to the other party upon demand. In 

the event that either party to this Agreement shall file suit or action at law or equity to interpret or 

enforce this Agreement hereof, the unsuccessful party to such litigation agrees to pay to the 

prevailing party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the 

Page 128 of 360



AGREEMENT FOR LOCATION AWARENESS TRACKING DEVICE SERVICES - 4  

prevailing party, including the same with respect to an appeal. 

(h) Authority. Each party represents to the other that it has authority to execute this 

Agreement and to perform all of the terms and conditions required of them as provided under this 

Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

above written. 
 

City of Mountain Home: 

 

 

 

 

 

By   

Rich Sykes, Mayor 

Azuga, Inc. a Bridgestone Company: 

 

 

 

 

 

By:  

Pierre Parent, CFO 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:  

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 129 of 360



AGREEMENT FOR LOCATION AWARENESS TRACKING DEVICE SERVICES - 4  

EXHIBIT A – Amendment 1 to Azuga Master Agreement 

 

This Amendment 1 to Azuga Master Agreement (hereafter “Amendment 1”) is made in to the 

Azuga Master Agreement found here: https://www.azuga.com/license-agreement (the “AMA”) 

and is incorporated into the Agreement for Location Awareness Tracking Device Services (the 

“Agreement”) entered into by and between the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, a city within 

Elmore County, Idaho incorporated under Idaho Constitution Article XII, §1 (“City”), and 

Azuga, a Bridgestone Company, a California corporation with its principal place of business at 

42840 Christy Street, Fremont, California (hereinafter “Provider” or “Azuga” and (collectively, 

the “Parties”). 

 

 

1. Changes to AMA.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the section of the AMA entitled 

“Changes”, the parties agree that: 

a. De-Minimus Changes.   De-minimus changes which do not vary the obligations 

or material value of the Agreement or nature of the Services shall be allowed by 

Azuga without any notification and shall be deemed incorporated into the 

Agreement upon posting by Azuga. For greater certainty, the parties agree that a 

“de minimus” change constitutes items including, but not limited to, the following: 

corrections of typographical or scrivener’s errors; changes to dates; legislative 

references; references and names of products and/or services; additions of or 

updates to references of legislation, regulations, or laws to which the AMA is 

subject or in alignment to; expansion of Service offerings and features;  addition 

or deletion of services to which City has not subscribed to; structural changes of 

the AMA and incorporated documents; etc. 

b. Material Changes.  The “Changes” section of the Data Processing Addendum 

(“DPA”) is hereby deleted.  Azuga will notify City of any changes which directly 

affect the Services subscribed to by City which impact the nature of the Services, 

the relative obligations of the parties where City’s obligations, costs, or liabilities 

are increased from those set forth in the Agreement.  City will have the option to 

either agree, in writing, to the Material Changes or elect to Cancel the Agreement 

within the time-frame specified in the notice, but in no event not less than forty-

five (45) day. 

c. Cancelation due to Material Change: In the event City objects to Material 

Changes and opts to Cancel the Agreement, Azuga will not hold City responsible 

for _________(“ETF”) costs.  

 

2. Public Records Request Legislation.   The Privacy Policy of the AMA are hereby 

modified to comply with the Idaho Public Records Act Title 74, Chapter 1, Idaho Code.  

Notwithstanding provisions of the AMA providing for Confidentiality, City may release 

such information it deems strictly necessary in order to comply with any Public Records 

or Freedom of Information requests provided that it also provides Azuga a copy of such 

information release and the request made for its records. 

Page 130 of 360

https://www.azuga.com/license-agreement


AGREEMENT FOR LOCATION AWARENESS TRACKING DEVICE SERVICES - 4  

 

3. Dispute Resolution. Any and all reference to “arbitration” in the AMA are hereby 

deleted.  Notwithstanding any provision within the AMA pertaining to dispute resolution, 

the Parties do hereby agree that any dispute arising out of the Agreement (including the 

AMA, this Amendment, or related and incorporated terms) shall be resolved, in the first 

instance, by the good-faith efforts of the parties to reach mutually agreeable resolutions. 

Failing such resolutions, the Parties agree to submit to non-binding mediation with a 

mediator that is agreeable to both and located in the location of their choosing within the 

Jurisdiction provided for at Section 12(f) of the Agreement. 

 

Authority. Each party represents to the other that it has authority to execute this Amendment 1 

and to perform all of the terms and conditions required of them as provided under the Agreement 

hereby amended. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above 

written. 

 

City of Mountain Home 

 

 

By:________________________________ 

Rich Sykes, Mayor 

Azuga, Inc., a Bridgestone Company 

 

 

By:_____________________________ 

Pierre Parent, CFO 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:______________________________ 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 

EXHIBIT B – Order Form 

Page 131 of 360



Page 132 of 360



Page 133 of 360



Page 134 of 360



Page 135 of 360



Page 136 of 360



Page 137 of 360



Page 138 of 360



Page 139 of 360



Page 140 of 360



Page 141 of 360



Page 142 of 360



Page 143 of 360



Resolution #27-2025R – Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  #27-2025R 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A  EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT WITH COMMUNITY LEASEING 

PARTNERS, AS LESSOR AND SEPARATE LEASE SCHEDULES THERETO FOR THE ACQUISITION, PURCHASE, 

FINANCING AND LEASING OF CERTAIN EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE TERMS HEREIN PROVIDED; 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF OTHER DOCUMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH; AND AUTHORIZING ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE 

TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION. 

 WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, (the “Lessee”), a municipal corporation of the County of 

Elmore, State of Idaho, is authorized by the laws of the State of Idaho is authorized by the laws of the State of 

Idaho to purchase, acquire and lease certain Equipment and other property for the benefit of the Lessee and 

its inhabitants and to enter into contracts with respect thereto; and 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to applicable law, the City Council is authorized to acquire, dispose of and 

encumber real and personal property, including, without limitation, rights and interest in property, leases 

and easements necessary to the functions or operations of the Lessee; 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the execution of one or more Lease-

Purchase Agreements or lease schedules in the principal amount not exceeding the amount stated above for 

the purpose of acquiring the property to be described in the Leases is appropriate and necessary to the 

functions and operations of the Lessee; 
 

 WHEREAS, Community Leasing Partners (“Lessor”) shall act as Lessor under said Leases; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN 

HOME AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. It is hereby found and determined that the terms of the Equipment Lease Agreement (including the 

Payment Schedule attached thereto), in the form presented at this meeting, are in the best interests of 

the Lessee for the acquisition, purchase, financing, and leasing of the Equipment. 

 

Page 144 of 360



Resolution #27-2025R – Page 2 

2. The City Council, as the governing body of Lessee, hereby represents that this Lease is to be a “qualified 

tax-exempt obligation” pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the IRS Code of 1986 (the “Code”) as amended. 

3. Lessee has not issued, and reasonably anticipates that it will not issue Tax-Exempt obligations in the 

amount exceeding $10,000,000.00, during the current calendar year. 

4. The form, terms and provisions of the Equipment Lease Agreement and all other schedules and exhibits 

attached thereto are hereby approved in substantially the form presented at this meeting. The Mayor of 

the City of Mountain Home is hereby authorized and directed to sign and deliver the Equipment Lease 

Agreement and all exhibits attached thereto, and the City Clerk is hereby authorized to attest to the 

foregoing and affix the seal of the City to such documents.  

5. The Lessee’s obligations under the Lease shall be subject to annual appropriation or renewal by the City 

Council as set forth in the Lease and the Lessee’s obligations under the Lease shall not constitute general 

obligations of the Lessee or indebtedness under the Constitution or Laws of the State of Idaho. 

6. The Mayor and the officers and employees of the Lessee shall take all action necessary or reasonably 

required to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated by the Equipment 

Lease Agreement and to take all action necessary in conformity therewith, including, without limitation, 

the execution and delivery of any closing and other documents required to be delivered in connection 

with the Agreement. 

7. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its approval and adoption. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, on the ______   day of ____________2025.   

 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, on the ________ day of ______________ 2025. 

 

       ____     
       Rich Sykes, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

      (SEAL)  

____  ________________       
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 
 

  
  

Page 145 of 360



CC FoF, CoL PZ-23-36   1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

FOR THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 
 

IN RE:    ) 

     ) FINDINGS OF FACT AND 

Open Door Rentals/                        ) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Endurance Holdings, LLC  c/o       )  

Bonnie Layton of   )  

NV5                     )  

ANX PZ-25-11   )  

                  ) 

_______________________________________________________________________             

    

 This matter came for deliberation and decision before the City Council of the City 

of Mountain Home on the  14th day of October, 2025 following a public hearing before 

the Planning and Zoning Commission with a recommendation rendered on  August 19th, 

2025, for a public hearing held pursuant to notice as required by law, on a request (PZ-25-

11) for annexation and zone to R-4 Residential within the boundaries of the City of 

Mountain Home, Idaho. Notice of the public hearing was given as required by law. Having 

heard from the Applicant in support of the application, the City Council having adopted 

the Staff Report and the Commission’s findings recommendation noting that, no  members 

of the public appeared to testify at the public hearing regarding the development and one 

letter was received,  and being fully advised in the matter, issues the following Findings of 

Fact, Conclusions of Law as follows: 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The applicant has applied for the annexation of the real property, one 

parcel totaling approximately 40 acres, that are legally described in Exhibit A, which is 

attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof and the zoning of the property as 

R-4 Residential. 

2. Notice of the public hearing has been given as required by law. 

3. The owner of the real property for which annexation is sought has 

requested in writing that the property be annexed to and made a part of the City of 

Mountain Home. 

Page 146 of 360



CC FoF, CoL PZ-23-36   2 

4. Because the property owner has requested in writing that the property be 

annexed into the City of Mountain Home, the annexation is a Category A annexation as 

provided by Idaho Code § 50-222. 

5. The requested zoning of the property as Residential R-4 is consistent with 

the City’s duly adopted Comprehensive Plan and Future-Land Use Map. 

6.  Relevant criteria and standards for consideration of this application are set 

forth in Mountain Home City Code Section 9-6-4 and Idaho Code § 50-222. 

7. The annexation is consistent with the negotiated area of impact with 

Elmore County. 

8. The annexation incorporates the City’s sewer planning area. 

9. With the construction of the improvements by the applicant, the 

annexation balances the costs of services with anticipated revenues. 

10. The annexation promotes the City’s goals of population balance, 

contiguous development, and the prevention of unnecessary costs due to leapfrog 

development. 

11. The proposed annexation promotes the keeping of City limit boundaries 

that are squared off and not irregular in shape. 

12. The approval of the annexation and the zoning of the properties as R-4 

Residential based is consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the fact that 

other R-4 zoned properties abut the subject property.   

13. No members of the public expressed concerns regarding the annexation 

during the public hearing, noting the following: 

Based on the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council for the City of 

Mountain Home hereby makes the following 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The notice and hearing requirements of Idaho Code Section 67-6509(a) have 

been met. 

Page 147 of 360



CC FoF, CoL PZ-23-36   3 

2. The action taken herein does not violate Chapter 80 of Title 67 of the Idaho 

Code, the Idaho Regulatory Takings Act. 

3. The applicant has met the requirements of Mountain Home City Code Section 9-

6-4 and Idaho Code § 50-222 concerning annexation. 

4. The requested zoning is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

5. The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 in favor of recommending 

approval of the request. 

 

Based on the forgoing CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, the City Council for the City of 

Mountain Home hereby enters the following  

 

DECISION 

 The City Council for the City of Mountain Home having reviewed P&Z’s 

findings, the public hearing, the staff report, applicant narrative, site plan, and having 

considered the presentation of the applicant and additional testimony, hereby AFFIRMS 

and APPROVES Planning and Zoning’s recommendation (PZ-25-11) to annex the 

property described in Exhibit A, and shown in Exhibit B, to the City of Mountain Home, 

Idaho, and the zoning of said property as R-4 under the following conditions: 

1. Subject to site plan amendments required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and 

Zoning Officials to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 

2. All future development will comply with the use, bulk, and coverage controls of 

the R-4 Residential Zoning District.  

3. A Water Rights Fee in the amount of $2,000 per acres shall be paid at the time of 

annexation. 

4. Annexation is conditional depending on the approval of the following 

applications: PZ-25-10 PUD, and PZ-25-12 PPLAT. 

5. All developments regarding this application will be subject to the City of 

Mountain Home’s ability to provide municipal water and wastewater services.  

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 148 of 360



CC FoF, CoL PZ-23-36   4 

DATED this __th day of December 2025. 

 

      CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 

 

 By__________________  

 

Rich Sykes, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 

 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL 

An applicant denied an application or aggrieved by a final decision or any 

affected person aggrieved by a final decision concerning matters identified in 

section 67-6521(1)(a), Idaho Code, may within twenty-eight (28) days after all 

remedies have been exhausted under local ordinance seek judicial review 

under the procedures provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code.   

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO REQUEST REGULATORY TAKINGS 

ANALYSIS 

 Please take notice of the applicant’s right to request a regulatory taking 

analysis pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code,  the Idaho Regulatory 

Takings Act.   

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING  

I hereby certify on this ___ day of _____, 2025 a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing document with attachments was mailed by U.S. Mail to the 

following: 

 

Emailed to: Brenda Ellis – Development Services Department  

Hank Patrick – Building Official 

 

By:____________________________ 

 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

  

Page 149 of 360

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6521
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH52
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


CC FoF, CoL PZ-23-36   5 

Attachment “A”: Legal Description 

 

 

ANNEXATION DESCRIPTION 

FOR 

Blue Yonder West 

 

A parcel of land being the SE1/4 of the SW1/4 of Section 35, Township 3 South, Range 6 

East, Boise Meridian, Elmore County, Idaho, said parcel being more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Commencing at a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the S 1/4 corner of said section 35, said rebar 

being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

Thence along the south line of Section 35 , N.89°53’52”W. a distance of 1325.81 feet to 

a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the W 1/16 corner; 

 

Thence, N.0°19’59”W. a distance of 1324.62 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the SW 

1/16 corner; 

 

Thence, S.89°49’18”E. a distance of 1325.60 feet to an Aluminum cap with 5/8-inch iron 

pin marking the S 1/16 corner; 

 

Thence, S.0°21’06”E. a distance of 1322.63 feet to a 1/2-inch iron pin marking the S 1/4 

corner of section 35, also being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

Said parcel contains 40.28 acres, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements and 

right-of-ways of record or implied. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 150 of 360



CC FoF, CoL PZ-23-36   6 

Attachment “B”: Proposed Property to be Annexed 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 151 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

FOR THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 
 

IN RE:    ) 

     ) FINDINGS OF FACT AND 

Blue Yonder West                    ) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

PUD, PZ-25-10                                  ) 

Applicant: NV5              )  

%Open Door Rentals                    )   

_______________________________________________________________________ 

     

 This matter came for deliberation and decision before the City Council of the City 

of Mountain Home on the  14th day of October, 2025 following a public hearing before 

the Planning and Zoning Commission with a recommendation rendered on  August 19th, 

2025, for a public hearing held pursuant to notice as required by law, on a request for 

rezoning to R-4 Planned Unit Development, “Blue Yonder West”, of certain real property 

identified as parcel ID RPA3S06E354855 and parcel ID RP03S06E356610, Mountain 

Home, Idaho. This application (PZ-25-10) ran contemporaneously with a preliminary plat 

for the Blue Yonder West (PZ-25-12) and an Annexation request (PZ-25-11) for parcel 

ID RP03S06E356610.  The notice of public hearing was given as required by law. 

Having heard from the Applicant in support of the application, the City Council having 

adopted the Staff Report and the Commission’s findings recommendation noting that two 

(2) members of the public appeared to testify at the public hearing regarding the 

development and one letter was received,  and being fully advised in the matter, issues 

the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law as follows: 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1. The Applicant has applied for the rezone of real property that is legally described 

in Exhibit A that is attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof with a 

requested rezoning to R-4 Planned Unit Development described as "Blue Yonder West”.  

a. R-4 zoning does allow for residential development. 

2. Notice of public hearing has been given as required by law. 

a. Site was posted and notices mailed to 300’ radius to property owners, 

occupants, and to public entities.  

Page 152 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 2 

3. The owner of the real property for which rezoning, is sought has requested in 

writing that the property be rezoned. 

4. The proposed “Blue Yonder West” shown on the site plan (Exhibit B) will be 

approximately sixty-five (65) acres in size, consists of three hundred and ninety-eight 

(398) lots, providing three hundred and seventy-six (376) single-family lots, and would 

include the following:  

a. Detached single-family home lots. 

b. Pedestrian connectivity. 

c. Pocket parks. 

d. Playground. 

e. Tot lot. 

f. Sports court. 

g. Fiber Hub. 

h. Sewer Lift Station 

i. Common lots and amenities owned and maintained by the Blue Yonder 

West Homeowners Association.  

5. Per City of Mountain Home City Code 9-6-3, the Commission and City Council 

shall review the particular facts and circumstances of each proposal in terms of the 

following standards and shall find adequate evidence answering the following questions 

about the proposed rezone, including: 

a. Will the new zoning be harmonious with and in accordance with the 

comprehensive plan, and if not, has there been an application for a 

comprehensive plan amendment; 

i. The zoning is harmonious with and in accordance with the 

comprehensive plan.  

ii. Housing is a top five priority.  

iii. A variety of housing provides for workforce and Airbase housing 

and is a priority for economic growth.  

iv. Balancing housing needs and the ability to provides services. 

Tying approvals to availability of infrastructure, both existing and 

proposed. 

Page 153 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 3 

b. Is the area included in the zoning amendment intended to be rezoned in 

the future; 

i. The current future land use map has this area designated as 

residential. 

c. Has there been a change in the area or adjacent areas which may dictate 

that the area should be rezoned; 

i. Forty acres of this proposed development were annexed into the 

city and zoned R-4. This application ran contemporaneously with 

the Planned Unit Development application and the Preliminary Plat 

application. The requested rezone is to rezone from R-4 to R-4 

PUD. 

d. Will the proposed uses be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained 

to be harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or 

intended character of the general vicinity, and that such use will not 

change the essential character of the same area; 

i. The general vicinity is residential. There are subdivisions to the 

east of the proposed development. Residential uses to the west. 

And vacant land to the south.  

e. Will the proposed uses not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future 

neighboring uses; 

i. Immediate uses in the area are residential. 

f. Will, the area, be served adequately by essential public facilities and 

services such as highways, streets, police, and fire protection, drainage 

structures, refuse disposal, water, and sewer, or that the person responsible 

for the establishment of the proposed zoning amendment shall be able to 

provide adequately any of such services; 

i. This application has been reviewed by, building, fire, police, fiber, 

water, wastewater, streets, and Public Works.  

1. Fire - Required the two parcels at the end of Crestview be 

hammerhead turnaround and non-buildable until such a 

Page 154 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 4 

time that Crestview is extended to the North. And minor 

street naming issues. This has been corrected an approved. 

2. Building also commented regarding street naming issues. 

Directional designation was required. These issues were 

resolved. Approval was received for E-911 regarding street 

naming. 

3. Police had no comment. 

4. City Fiber conduit is required. A 10x10 fiber hut location 

has been designated on the preliminary plat on lot 5, block 

9.  

5. Water-currently there are available Water EDU’s. Water 

services be accessed from the adjacent developments and 

new 16” service line in Smith Road.  

6. Wastewater-currently there are available wastewater 

EDU’s. Many mitigation efforts have been undertaken by 

the Public Works Department to reduce infiltration into the 

wastewater facilities. A sewer lift station will be installed 

and dedicated to the City. The City has applied for a grant 

for Cell 10. Awaiting to see if it will be awarded to the 

City. If not awarded the City may build it. Keller will be 

addressing our wastewater facility plan to identify a 

transition plan from lagoon system to mechanical system. 

g. Will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare 

of the community; 

h. Will the proposed uses not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, 

equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 

persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of excessive 

production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors; 

i. The surrounding uses are residential. A TIS was completed. ITD 

requires the developer to install a southbound left turn lane at SH-

Page 155 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 5 

51 & Smith Road with the following dimensions five hundred and 

five (505) foot deceleration area, one hundred (100) foot storage 

area, two hundred and ten (210) foot gap length, fourteen (14) feet 

wide, nine hundred and ten (910) foot taper length. In the event an 

approved encroachment permit is not obtained within one year, the 

staff report will no longer be valid and ITD may request an 

updated TIS to reflect current traffic Conditions. The TIS proposed 

the following improvements: 1. Improve stop bar visibility on the 

Smith Road approaches. 2. Install advanced “stop ahead” warning 

signs and pavement markings on the Smith Road approaches. 3. 

Install advanced “intersection” warning signs on the SH-51 

approaches. 4. SH 51 and Smith Road intersection warrants a 

Southbound left-turn lane based on the ITD turn land guidelines.  

i. Will the area have vehicular approaches to the property, which shall be 

designed as not to create an interference with traffic on surrounding public 

streets; 

i. Access to Blue Yonder West will be from Smith Road onto SW 

Pebblebrook Way, Rolling Hills Avenue, SW Nathan Street, and 

Tiger Hollow from Blue Yonder Subdivision onto SW Evergreen 

and SW Timber Trail Street.  

j. Will not result in the destruction, loss, or damage of a natural or scenic 

feature of major importance; and 

k. Is the proposed zoning amendment in the best interest of the city? 

6. Per City of Mountain Home City Code 9-18, a Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

is designed to accommodate appropriate combinations of uses that may be planned, 

developed, and operated as integral land use units either by a single owner or a 

combination of owners. The purpose of a PUD is to accomplish some, or all of the 

following: 

a. Foster and promote a variety of appropriate land use combinations in a 

preplanned development pattern; 

b. Encourage developers to use a creative approach in land development. 

Page 156 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 6 

c. Retain and conserve natural land and topographic features; 

d. Promote greater use of streetscape and pedestrian oriented aesthetics; 

e. Promote the creation and efficient use of open spaces; 

f. Create flexibility and variety in the location of improvements on lots; 

g. Provide flexibility in development standards to facilitate creative land 

development concepts.  

7. One letter was received and two (2) members of the public appearing in person 

testified at the P&Z hearing concerning: 

a. Low water pressure issue.   

i. Looping dead end lines can help with water pressure issues. 

ii. Pressure tests in the area are 50-80 psi on public lines. 

iii. Lines from the meter to the home are not controlled by the city.  

b. Infrastructure concerns regarding fire, police, ambulance. People blocking 

access to the vacant field preventing access.   

c. Traffic concerns regarding this and other developments in the area, 

creating safety issues, and congestion at Hwy 51, Haskett, and Smith 

Road. 

i. Hwy 51 and Smith Road is not within the boundaries of the City of 

Mountain Home and is not identified in the CIP. 

ii. Smith Road that abuts Blue Yonder West will be improved as 

development happens. 

iii. There are improvements scheduled for South 5th West. 

d. The letter regarding Autumn Avenue.  

The entirety of Autumn Avenue is outside the City limits, and is a private 

right-of-way dedicated by the prior owner of the parcels to the benefit of 

the property owners, all outside city limits, that it serves. Neither the City 

nor the County have any ownership or control over the road and the 

subdivisions within the city limits adjacent to Autumn Avenue are not 

connecting any streets to it. The City of Mountain Home has no authority 

over a private drive outside city limits. 

Page 157 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 7 

8. Mountain Home City Code 9-7-8 Bulk and Coverage R-4 zone zoning 

requirements. Minimum lot size in the R-4 zone is five thousand (5,000) square feet. 

Minimum street frontage is fifty (50), The maximum lot coverage, minimum yard areas, 

and minimum floor areas are N/A. Front yard setbacks are twenty (20) with front loaded 

garages, and fifteen (15) for side or rear loaded garages. Rear yard setbacks are fifteen 

(15) feet and interior side setbacks are five (5) feet and twelve (12), Street side yard 

setbacks are twenty (20) feet, and there is a maximum building height of thirty (30) feet. 

The Planned Unit Development Agreement (Exhibit C) for Blue Yonder West proposes: 

a. Minimum lots size: thirty-four hundred square feet (3,400). Majority of 

lots will exceed this.  

b. Minimum street frontage: thirty-four (34) feet. 

c. Side yard setbacks: five (5) feet. 

d. Street side yard setbacks:  fifteen (15) feet from ROW edge. 

e. Front yard setback: fifteen (15) feet minimum for alley-loaded homes; 

fifteen (15) feet to living space and covered front porches. Twenty (20) 

feet to garage face for front loaded garages. 

f. Rear yard setback: fifteen (15) feet minimum. Meets existing R-4 

standard. 

g. Minimum floor area: no minimum. Meets existing R-4 standard. 

9. Applicant is proposing block lengths that exceed nine hundred (900) feet. Blocks 

that exceed 900 ft. in length shall be broken up with traffic calming measures. 

10. The proposed subdivision would have street widths of: 

i. Thirty-six (36) feet back of curb to back of curb and within a fifty-

two (52) foot right of way. 

ii. Alleys to be twenty-four (24) feet wide. 

11. The proposed subdivision would have private driveways of eighteen (18) feet in 

width.  

12. The City of Mountain Home has consulted with Keller and Associates regarding 

general conformance with the City’s Capital Improvement Plans and existing 

infrastructure. Per a letter received from Keller and Associates: 

a. Water 

Page 158 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 8 

i. Recommends the developer to construct the 16” line along their 

southern property line in Smith Road. (CIP 3.2) 

ii. Recommends the developer to construct the 16” line withing the 

development along the western most street (Pebblebrook Way and 

Crestview Avenue). Two stub outs off Crestview to Autumn Road 

as shown. Additionally, the developer provide an easement for 

future phases for the 16” waterline to the developments Northwest 

corner.  

iii. Recommends the development connect to the exiting waterline on 

SW Rolling Hills to improve system redundancy, looping, and 

efficiency. 

iv. CIP project 1.6 needs to be completed to avoid pressures under 40 

PSI during seasonal peak hour demands. The City will address this 

issue.   

b. Wastewater 

i. Recommends the developer to coordinate the invert into the lift 

station with the future 24” trunkline invert. The same comments 

regarding Autume Avenue under the water section apply to this 

sewer section.  

1. In a letter to the applicant public works has required that 

the developer pay up to $7,500 for a detailed service study 

to coordinate the lift station’s depth and diameter.   

ii. Recommends the City require the development to add a new 

manhole at the intersection of SW Paiute and S. 5th W. Street and 

divert flow from the existing 8” line to the existing 24” line. 

1. A meeting with Keller on the day of the hearing determined 

that further review was required by Keller Associates. It 

was recommended the applicant comply with the updated 

review relating to note 2 and to submit the changes required 

by Keller in the updated review in the development plans 

for approval.  

Page 159 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 9 

iii. With the addition of this development, this will accelerate the need 

for wastewater treatment facility upgrades such as winter storage, 

chlorine contact chamber improvements and aeration. Completing 

the winter storage improvements will be needed to service the 

City’s committed capacity. 

13. The requested zoning of R-4 "Blue Yonder West" PUD was found by the 

Planning & Zoning Commission to be in accordance with the city's Planned Unit 

Development Ordinance (9-18) regarding the underlying zoning district.  

a. The proposed uses are not detrimental to any surrounding uses, nor shall 

they be detrimental to the public's health, safety, and general welfare. 

b. The requested variations from the underlying zoning district development 

requirements are warranted by the design and amenities incorporated in 

the conceptual development plan. 

c. The underlying zoning district and the conceptual development plan 

conform to the comprehensive plan. 

d. The existing and proposed streets, roadways, and utility services are 

suitable and adequate for the proposed development. 

 

Based on the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council for the City of 

Mountain Home makes the following: 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The notice and hearing requirements of Idaho Code Section 67-6512 have been 

met. 

2. The action taken herein does not violate Chapter 80 of Title 67 of the Idaho Code, 

the Idaho Regulatory Takings Act. 

3. Relevant criteria and standards for consideration of this application are set forth in 

Mountain Home City Code Section 9-6-3, City Code Section 9-6-10, City Code 9-18, 

City Code 9-19, and the 2020 Comprehensive Plan, along with the Local Land Use 

Planning Act, Title 67, chapter 65. 

Page 160 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 10 

4. The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to zone to 

R-4 PUD Blue Yonder West with conditions. 

5. The City Council votes unanimously in favor of the application.  

Based on the forgoing CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, the City of Mountain Home City 

Council hereby enters the following:  

 

DECISION 

 The City Council for the City of Mountain Home having reviewed P&Z’s 

findings, the public hearing, the staff report, applicant narrative, site plan, and having 

considered the presentation of the applicant and additional testimony, hereby AFFIRMS 

and APPROVES Planning and Zoning’s recommendation for a zone R-4 with the PUD 

entitled "Blue Yonder West" PUD with the following conditions: 

1. Subject to site plan amendments as required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and 

Zoning Officials to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 

 

2. All future development will comply with the uses and bulk & coverage and 

landscaping controls as provided in the attached site masterplan, landscape plan 

and planned unit development agreement. 

 

3. Prior to a Final Plats being recorded the applicant shall receive all necessary 

approvals from Idaho Transportation Department, as stated in their response 

letter, and the Mountain Home Highway District if required for any mitigation 

requirements stated in the Traffic Impact Study regarding State Highway 51 and 

Smith Road.  

 

4. Per City Code 9-16-10(J), Failure to file and obtain the certification of the 

acceptance of the final plat application by the administrator within one year after 

action by the Commission shall cause all approvals of said preliminary plat to be 

null and void unless a one-year extension of time is applied for, thirty (30) days 

before the expiration, by the subdivider and granted by the Commission. A 

preliminary plat may be extended one time only, after which it shall be null and 

void. 

 

5. Water Rights Fee shall be paid at final plat approval for parcel 

RPA3S06E354855. Parcel RP03S06E356610 shall pay water rights fee upon 

annexation unless otherwise agreed upon.  

 

Page 161 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 11 

6. Applicant will comply with the updated review relating to note 2 in the Keller 

Associates Review. Those changes will be provided in the development plans for 

approval.  

 

7. All development regarding this application will be subject to the City of Mountain 

Home’s ability to provide municipal water and wastewater services.  

 

 DATED this __th day of December 2025. 

 

      CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 

 

 By__________________  

 

Rich Sykes, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 

 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL 

An applicant denied an application or aggrieved by a final decision or any 

affected person aggrieved by a final decision concerning matters identified in 

section 67-6521(1)(a), Idaho Code, may within twenty-eight (28) days after all 

remedies have been exhausted under local ordinance seek judicial review 

under the procedures provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code.   

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO REQUEST REGULATORY TAKINGS 

ANALYSIS 

 Please take notice of the applicant’s right to request a regulatory taking 

analysis pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code,  the Idaho Regulatory 

Takings Act.   

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING  

I hereby certify on this ___ day of _____, 2025 a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing document with attachments was mailed by U.S. Mail to the 

following: 

 

Emailed to: Brenda Ellis – Development Services Department  

Hank Patrick – Building Official 

 

By:____________________________ 

 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

  

Page 162 of 360

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6521
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH52
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 12 

Exhibit A: Legal Description  

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

FOR 

Blue Yonder West 

 

A parcel of land lying in the SW1/4 of Section 35, Township 3 South, Range 6 East, 

Boise Meridian, Elmore County, Idaho, said parcel being more particularly described as 

follows: 

 

Commencing at a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the S 1/4 corner of said section 35, said iron 

pin being the point of beginning POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

Thence, along the south line of Section 35 N.89°53’52”W. a distance of 1325.81 feet to a 

5/8-inch iron pin marking the W 1/16 corner; 

 

Thence, N.0°19’59”W. a distance of 1324.62 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the SW 

1/16 corner; 

 

Thence, N.0°20’29”W. a distance of 902.46 feet to a point; 

 

Thence, along the south boundary of the proposed Autom Park Subdivision 

S.89°44’00”E. a distance of 1023.25 feet to a point; 

 

Thence, along Rolling Hills Sub. No. 5 for the next 4 calls, S.0°15’52”E. a distance of 

446.02 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, S.89°46’09”E. a distance of 100.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, S.0°15’52”E. a distance of 44.33 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, S.89°46’09”E. a distance of 202.78 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, along the west line of Rolling Hills Sub. No. 3 S.0°20’47”E. a distance of 410.48 

feet to an aluminum cap marking the CS 1/16 Corner; 

 

Thence, S.0°21’06”E. a distance of 1322.85 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the S 1/4 

corner of section 35, also being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

Said parcel contains 65.41 acres, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements and 

right-of-ways of record or implied. 

 

Page 163 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 13 

Exhibit B: Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 164 of 360



FoF, CoL  PZ-25-10 14 

Exhibit C – Planned Unit Development Agreement 

 

Page 165 of 360



Page 166 of 360



Page 167 of 360



Page 168 of 360



Page 169 of 360



Page 170 of 360



Page 171 of 360



Page 172 of 360



Page 173 of 360



Page 174 of 360



Page 175 of 360



Page 176 of 360



Page 177 of 360



Page 178 of 360



Page 179 of 360



Page 180 of 360



Page 181 of 360



Page 182 of 360



Page 183 of 360



Page 184 of 360



Page 185 of 360



Page 186 of 360



Page 187 of 360



Page 188 of 360



Page 189 of 360



Page 190 of 360



Page 191 of 360



Page 192 of 360



Page 193 of 360



Page 194 of 360



CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

FOR THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 
 

IN RE:    ) 

     ) FINDINGS OF FACT AND 

Blue Yonder West                    ) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

PPLAT PZ-25-12                              ) 

Applicant: NV5              )  

%Open Door Rentals                    )   

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 This matter came for deliberation and decision before the City Council of the City 

of Mountain Home on the  14th day of October, 2025 following a public hearing before 

the Planning and Zoning Commission with a recommendation rendered on  August 19th, 

2025, for a public hearing held pursuant to notice as required by law, on a request for 

approval of a preliminary plat of certain real property that is within the corporate 

boundaries of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho. The notice of public hearing was given 

as required by law. Having heard from the Applicant in support of the application, the 

City Council having adopted the Staff Report and the Commission’s findings 

recommendation noting that no members of the public appeared to testify at the public 

hearing regarding the development and one letter was received,  and being fully advised 

in the matter, issues the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law as follows: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The applicant has applied for the preliminary platting of the real property 

that is legally described in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto. 

2. The owner of the real property for which preliminary platting is sought has 

requested in writing that the property be preliminary platted. 

3. The proposed “Blue Yonder West” (Exhibit B) consists of approximately 

65 acres and would include the following:  

a. Three hundred and ninety-eight (398) total lots 

b. Three hundred and seventy-six (376) residential lots 

c. Twenty-two (22) Common lots 

4. Notice of public hearing has been given as required by law. 

a. A notification to niney-six (96) property owners and twenty-nine (29) 

Public Entities on 7/11/2025 

Page 195 of 360



CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   2 

b. Notice of public hearing was in the Mountain Home News on 07/30/2025 

and 08/06/2025. 

c. Notice of the public hearing was posted on the property 07/29/2025. 

5. As required by Idaho and City Code, a public hearing was held regarding the 

request.  

a. No members of the public appeared to provide testimony regarding the 

preliminary plat. 

6. City Staff Confirmed that the proposed preliminary plat complies with 

City Code 9-16-10 Preliminary Plat requirements, and the proposed Blue Yonder West 

R-4 Planned Unit Development (PZ-25-10) Exhibit C. 

7. Further, City Staff and the Commission have considered the following per 

9-16-10 of the Mountain Home City Code concerning preliminary plats: 

a. The availability of public services to accommodate the proposed 

development. 

i. There are available EDU’s at this time. 

b. The continuity of the development with the capital improvement program.  

i. Keller Associates has reviewed this development for 

conformance with the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and 

identified CIP project for water; CIP Project 3.2, CIP Project 3.6, 

and CIP project 3.1 for wastewater.  

c. The public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed 

development. 

i. Keller Associates has reviewed this development  for 

general conformance with the existing infrastructure and 

commented that similar to other recent dvelopments, with the 

addition of this development, this will accelerate the need for 

wastewater treatment facility upgrades such as winter storage, 

chlorine contact chamber improvements, and aeration. 

Completing the winter storage improvements will be needed to 

service the City’s committed capacity. 

Page 196 of 360



CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   3 

Based on the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, , the City Council for the City of 

Mountain Home hereby makes the following: 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The notice and hearing requirements of Idaho Code Section 67-6509(a) have 

been met. 

2. The action taken herein does not violate Chapter 80 of Title 67 of the Idaho 

Code, the Idaho Regulatory Takings Act. 

3. The applicant has met the requirements of Mountain Home City Code 9-6-10 

Public Hearing Requirements and 9-16-10 Preliminary Plat. 

4. The requested preliminary plat is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan. 

5. The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 in favor of recommending 

approval of the request. 

 

Based on the forgoing CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, the City Council for the City of 

Mountain Home hereby enters the following: 

 

DECISION 

 The City Council for the City of Mountain Home having reviewed P&Z’s 

findings, the public hearing, the staff report, applicant narrative, site plan, and having 

considered the presentation of the applicant and additional testimony, hereby AFFIRMS 

and APPROVES Planning and Zoning’s recommendation for to approve the requested 

preliminary plat “Blue Yonder West,” as described in Exhibit A, in the City of Mountain 

Home, Idaho, under the following conditions: 

1. Subject to site plan amendments as required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and 

Zoning Officials to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 

 

2. The Final Plat and all future development will comply with the uses and bulk & 

coverage controls as provided in attached “Proposed Planned Unit Agreement” 

and “Master Plan”.  

 

Page 197 of 360



CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   4 

3. Prior to a Final Plats being recorded the applicant shall receive all necessary 

approvals from the Central Health District regarding water and sewer 

infrastructure.  

 

4. Prior to a Final Plat being recorded the applicant shall receive all necessary 

approvals from Idaho Transportation Department and the Mountain Home 

Highway District for any mitigation requirements stated in the Traffic Impact 

Study regarding State Highway 51 and Smith Road.  

 

5. Per City Code 9-16-10(J), Failure to file and obtain the certification of the 

acceptance of the final plat application by the administrator within one year after 

action by the Commission shall cause all approvals of said preliminary plat to be 

null and void unless a one-year extension of time is applied for, thirty (30) days 

before the expiration, by the subdivider and granted by the Commission. A 

preliminary plat may be extended one time only, after which it shall be. 

 

6. Water Rights Fee shall be paid at final plat approval for parcel RPA3S06E354855.  

Parcel RP03S06E356610 shall pay water rights fee upon annexation unless 

otherwise agreed upon.   

 

7. Note number nine (9) shall be updated to reflect the propert lot and block numbers 

on the final plat. 

 

8. Sewer stub out to Autumn Road must be show on the development plans.  

 

9. All development regarding this application will be subject to the City of Mountain 

Home’s ability to provide municipal water and wastewater services.  

 

DATED this __th day of December 2025. 

 

      CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 

 

 By__________________  

 

Rich Sykes, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 

 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 

 

Page 198 of 360



CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   5 

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL 

An applicant denied an application or aggrieved by a final decision or any 

affected person aggrieved by a final decision concerning matters identified in 

section 67-6521(1)(a), Idaho Code, may within twenty-eight (28) days after all 

remedies have been exhausted under local ordinance seek judicial review 

under the procedures provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code.   

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO REQUEST REGULATORY TAKINGS 

ANALYSIS 

 Please take notice of the applicant’s right to request a regulatory taking 

analysis pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code,  the Idaho Regulatory 

Takings Act.   

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING  

I hereby certify on this ___ day of _____, 2025 a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing document with attachments was mailed by U.S. Mail to the 

following: 

 

Emailed to: Brenda Ellis – Development Services Department  

Hank Patrick – Building Official 

 

By:____________________________ 

 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

  

Page 199 of 360

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6521
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH52
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   6 

Exhibit A: Legal Description 

 

 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

FOR 

Blue Yonder West 

 

A parcel of land lying in the SW1/4 of Section 35, Township 3 South, Range 6 East, 

Boise Meridian, Elmore County, Idaho, said parcel being more particularly described as 

follows: 

 

Commencing at a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the S 1/4 corner of said section 35, said iron 

pin being the point of beginning POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

Thence, along the south line of Section 35 N.89°53’52”W. a distance of 1325.81 feet to a 

5/8-inch iron pin marking the W 1/16 corner; 

 

Thence, N.0°19’59”W. a distance of 1324.62 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the SW 

1/16 corner; 

 

Thence, N.0°20’29”W. a distance of 902.46 feet to a point; 

 

Thence, along the south boundary of the proposed Autom Park Subdivision 

S.89°44’00”E. a distance of 1023.25 feet to a point; 

 

Thence, along Rolling Hills Sub. No. 5 for the next 4 calls, S.0°15’52”E. a distance of 

446.02 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, S.89°46’09”E. a distance of 100.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, S.0°15’52”E. a distance of 44.33 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, S.89°46’09”E. a distance of 202.78 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin; 

 

Thence, along the west line of Rolling Hills Sub. No. 3 S.0°20’47”E. a distance of 410.48 

feet to an aluminum cap marking the CS 1/16 Corner; 

 

Thence, S.0°21’06”E. a distance of 1322.85 feet to a 5/8-inch iron pin marking the S 1/4 

corner of section 35, also being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

Said parcel contains 65.41 acres, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements and 

right-of-ways of record or implied. 
 
 
  

 

 

Page 200 of 360



CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   7 

Exhibit B: Proposed Preliminary Plat 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 201 of 360



CC FoF – PPLAT, PZ-25-12   8 

 

Exhibit C: Proposed Planned Unit Development Agreement 

 

 

 

Page 202 of 360



Fof, CoL    1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

FOR THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 
 

IN RE:    ) 

     ) FINDINGS OF FACT AND 

Amended    ) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW    

Turner House Depot Subdivision )  

 Applicant.   )  

     ) 

PUD, PZ-24-31  

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 This matter came for deliberation and decision before the City Council of the City 

of Mountain Home on the 23rd day of September, 2025 following a public hearing before 

the Planning and Zoning Commission with a recommendation rendered on  August 19th, 

2025, for a public hearing held pursuant to notice as required by law, on a request for a 

rezoning amendment of certain real property previously approved as the R-4 PUD Turner 

House Depot planned unit development that is within the corporate boundaries of the 

City of Mountain Home, Idaho.  The notice of public hearing was given as required by 

law. Having heard from the Applicant in support of the application, the City Council 

having adopted the Staff Report and the Commission’s findings recommendation noting 

that no members of the public appeared to testify at the public hearing regarding the 

development and one letter was received,  and being fully advised in the matter, issues 

the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law as follows: 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1. The Applicant has applied to amend the rezone of real property that is legally 

described in Exhibit A that is attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof 

with a requested amendment of the initial zoning of R-4 PUD as described as "Turner 

House Depot". 

2. Notice of public hearing has been given as required by law. 

i. A notification was sent to one hundred thirty-six (136) property owners 

within 300 ft. on 07/24/2025. 

ii. A notification was sent to twenty-nine (29) Public Entities on 07/24/2025. 

Page 203 of 360



Fof, CoL    2 

iii. Notice of Public Hearing was in the Mountain Home News on 07/30/2025 

and 08/06/2025.   

iv. Notice of the Public Hearing was posted on the property on 07/30/2025. 

3. The owner of the real property for which the amended rezoning, is sought has 

requested in writing that the property be zoning be amended. 

4. No members of the public spoke regarding this development. 

5. Per City of Mountain Home City Code 9-18, a Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

is designed to accommodate appropriate combinations of uses that may be planned, 

developed, and operated as integral land use units either by a single owner or a 

combination of owners. The purpose of a PUD is to accomplish some, or all of the 

following: 

a. Foster and promote a variety of appropriate land use combinations in a 

preplanned development pattern; 

b. Encourage developers to use a creative approach in land development. 

c. Retain and conserve natural land and topographic features; 

d. Promote greater use of streetscape and pedestrian oriented aesthetics; 

e. Promote the creation and efficient use of open spaces; 

f. Create flexibility and variety in the location of improvements on lots; 

g. Provide flexibility in development standards to facilitate creative land 

development concepts.  

6. Further, 9-18 PUD, 9-18-4: A. e. Proposed changes that constitute a departure 

from the conceptual development plans and/or standards, the PUD written commitment 

document shall be adequately amended using the initial approval process. Changes to any 

of the following items constitute a departure from the conceptual development plan 

and/or development plan and/or development standards, thus changing the basic 

relationship of the proposed development to the adjacent property: 

a. The permitted uses; 

i. Proposed initial amendment was for all residential. Remand 

required a commercial component. 

b. Increase in density; 

i. Density was reduced by one unit. 

Page 204 of 360



Fof, CoL    3 

c. Increase in building height; 

i. No change 

d. Increase in building coverage or the site; 

i. No change 

e. Reduction in the off-street parking ration; 

i. Off street parking was not reduced 

f. Reducing the building setbacks provided at the boundary of the site;  

i. No Change 

g. Reduction of any open space plans; or  

i. No Change 

h. Alteration of the overall design theme, primary architectural elements or 

building materials.  

i. No Change 

7. Per City of Mountain Home City Code 9-6-3, the commission and City Council 

shall review the particular facts and circumstances of each proposal in terms of the 

following standards and shall find adequate evidence answering the following questions 

about the proposed rezone, including: 

a.  Will the new zoning be harmonious with and in accordance with 

the comprehensive plan, and if not, has there been an application for a 

comprehensive plan amendment; 

i. The zoning is harmonious with and in accordance with the 

comprehensive plan.  

ii. Housing is a top five priority.  

iii. A variety of housing provides for workforce and Airbase housing 

and is a priority for economic growth.  

iv. Balancing housing needs and the ability to provides services. 

Tying approvals to availability of infrastructure, both existing and 

proposed. 

b. Is the area included in the zoning amendment intended to be rezoned in 

the future; 

Page 205 of 360



Fof, CoL    4 

i. The current future land use map has this area designated as Light 

Industrial. It is unlikely to be rezoned in the future having been 

designated as an R-4 PUD zone. 

c. Has there been a change in the area or adjacent areas which may dictate 

that the area should be rezoned; 

i. The applicant is seeking amendment of the existing zoning. The 

zone will remain R-4 PUD. Applicant provided a negative 

economic feasibility study regarding the live/work units.   

d. Will the proposed uses be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained 

to be harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or 

intended character of the general vicinity, and that such use will not 

change the essential character of the same area; 

i. The general vicinity is residential and abuts Industrial.  

e. Will the proposed uses not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future 

neighboring uses; 

i. Immediate uses in the area are residential. Abuts the Rail Industrial 

Park, Optimist Park, and the Airport. 

f. Will, the area, be served adequately by essential public facilities and 

services such as highways, streets, police, and fire protection, drainage 

structures, refuse disposal, water, and sewer, or that the person responsible 

for the establishment of the proposed zoning amendment shall be able to 

provide adequately any of such services; 

i. This application has been reviewed by, building, fire, police, fiber, 

water, wastewater, streets, and Public Works.  

1. Fire – Required naming of the public alleys where front site 

access will be taken from. This has been completed. 

2. Building-Directional required on street names. Street 

names required for alleys. Street names were sent to E-911 

for approval.  

3. Police had no comment on the amendment. 

Page 206 of 360



Fof, CoL    5 

4. City Fiber - had no additional comment. City Fiber has 

been installed within phase one. 

5. Water-currently there are available Water EDU’s. Water 

has been installed within phase one.  

6. Wastewater-currently there are available wastewater 

EDU’s. Many mitigation efforts have been undertaken by 

the Public Works Department to reduce infiltration into the 

wastewater facilities.  Wastewater has been installed within 

phase one. 

g. Will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare 

of the community; 

h. Will the proposed uses not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, 

equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 

persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of excessive 

production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors; 

i. The surrounding uses are residential. The Rail Industrial Park to 

the north is currently vacant land.  There are storage facilities to 

the South. Airport to the West/southwest, and residential uses to 

the east. 

ii. A TIS was completed.  The TIS concluded all studied intersections 

operate with the City’s adopted level of service standards. The 

study warranted restriping the southbound land to include one left 

turn lane, one through land, and one shared through/right turn lane 

on Main Street and 5th North. Applicant has completed the required 

mitigation during phase one.  

i. Will the area have vehicular approaches to the property, which shall be 

designed as not to create an interference with traffic on surrounding public 

streets; 

i. Access to Turner House Depot will be from Elmcrest and 

Marathon Way. 

Page 207 of 360



Fof, CoL    6 

j. Will not result in the destruction, loss, or damage of a natural or scenic 

feature of major importance; and 

k. Is the proposed zoning amendment in the best interest of the city? 

8. The applicants initial request to amend the entitled R-4 PUD eliminated the 

twenty-two (22) live/work units from the original PUD and added an additional twelve 

(12) residential lots, configured in two hundred twenty-five (225) single-family detached 

homes and seventy (75) attached townhomes for a total of three hundred (300) residential 

lots. City Council deemed adding back in a commercial component to this application as 

a material change remanded this application back to Planning and Zoning. 

9. The proposed modified amended “Turner House Depot” (Exhibit B) would allow 

for a total of two-hundred and eighty-seven (287) residential lots configured in two-

hundred and thirty-seven (237) detached single family lots, fifty (50) two-story 

townhouse lots, one (1) commercial lot, and twenty-six (26) common lots.  

10. The proposed modified amendment still removes the dedication of the public park 

to the city and the development retains ownership of that land for use as common lots for 

the amenities within the Turner House Planned Unit Development and relocates it to a 

central location.  

11. The proposed amended “Turner House Depot” would provide twenty-six common 

lots along with the following amenities: 

a. A common community-oriented open space with active use areas 

including: 

i. A children's playground/Equipment area. 

ii. Community gathering space 

iii. Community Pavilion, including four (4) picnic tables. 

iv. Four (4) anchored benches. 

v. Screened Trash Enclosure Area 

b. A covered school bus stop maintained by the development's HOA. 

c. A Community Building that is a minimum of 3,000 square feet with a 

paved plaza space maintained by the HOA.  

       d. Internal neighborhood pathways maintained by the HOA 

Page 208 of 360



Fof, CoL    7 

12. The applicant is requesting the following waivers, deviations, and variances to 

City Code, which were previously approved by the City and proposed to remain in the 

amended PUD Agreement (Exhibit C) 

a) Lot Dimensional Requirements.  

i. City Code Section 9-7-8 for R-4 zone. a. Minimum Size. 

Minimum lot size reduced from lot size range from 5,000-7,000 

square feet to 1,750 square feet for attached homes and 2,100 

square feet for detached homes.  

ii. Lot coverage up to seventy (70) percent. 

iii. Lot Minimum Street Frontage. Minimum lot frontage reduced 

from 50 feet to 20 feet. 

iv. No minimum floor area. 

b) Yard Setbacks. City Code Section 9-7-8 for R-4 zone.   

i. Side setback, interior: from five (5’) and twelve (12’) foot to zero 

(0’) feet for attached unit or zero lot line condition, otherwise 5 

feet. 

ii. Side setback, street: five (5’) feet minimum to sidewalk. 

iii. Front yard setbacks from fifteen (15’) to 10 feet minimum for 

alley-loaded homes/garages, and twenty (20’) feet for front 

loaded homes/garages provided that front porches may extend up 

to four (4’) feet into a ten (10’) front setback.  

iv. Rear yard setbacks: 15 foot minimum generally but permitted 

down to 12.5’ feet for single level homes with alley-loaded 

garages, with 20’ alley access.  

c) Driveway length: minimum driveway length of ten (10’) feet for alley loaded lots.  

d) Street Right-Of-Way Widths. City Code Section 9-16-13.A.3 We are proposing 

32 foot wide streets with restricted parking locations and variable right-of-way 

widths. Refer to Sheet PP-06 of the amended Preliminary Plat and PUD 

Agreement Item 9.a 

Page 209 of 360



Fof, CoL    8 

e) Half Streets. City Code Section 9-16-13.A.3.f Mountain Home Way is a new 

public collector road located on the west side of this development. Per approved 

PUD, we are constructing the east half of the road. 

f) Block Length. City Code Section 9-16-13.E.1.b.  

i. a. Block 2, along the south boundary is approximately 1,120 feet 

long and exceeds the maximum block length of 900 feet. No 

reasonable way has been identified to break up this block without 

negatively impacting the adjacent property. See PUD Agreement 

Item 9.d.i.  

ii. Blocks 13, 14, and 15, in the northeast corner of the project, are 

below the minimum block length of 250 feet. This section was 

re-designed with the removal of the live work units after Phase 1 

was recorded. The layout shown in the Preliminary Plat and PUD 

Master Plan optimizes the available space for residential lots. 

g) Corner Lot Size. City Code Section 9-16-13.E.2.f Corner lots are not required to 

be 20% larger as previously approved in the PUD. See PUD Agreement Item 

9.d.ii. 

h) Buffer Yards and Reserve Strips. City Code Section 9-16-13.H. It was discussed 

and agreed to by the City to include these areas in the back yard of the adjacent 

residential lots. 

i) House Size in Relation to Lot Size. City Code Section 9-19B-2-1.B.1 Lot 

coverage of up to 70% as previously approved in the PUD. See PUD Agreement 

item 10.b. 

13. The requested zoning amendment of the entitled R-4 "Turner House Depot" PUD 

was found by the Planning & Zoning Commission to be in accordance with the city's 

Planned Unit Development Ordinance (9-18): 

a. The proposed uses are not detrimental to any surrounding uses, nor shall 

they be detrimental to the public's health, safety, and general welfare. 

b. The requested variations from the underlying zoning district development 

requirements are warranted by the design and amenities incorporated in 

the conceptual development plan. 

Page 210 of 360



Fof, CoL    9 

c. The underlying zoning district and the conceptual development plan 

conform to the comprehensive plan. 

d. The existing and proposed streets, roadways, and utility services are 

suitable and adequate for the proposed development. 

14.      An updated traffic estimate and memo indicated that no additional mitigation 

is required as a result in the design changes. Further, the removal of the 

live/work units generates fewer trips by 30 trips per weekday An updated 

memorandum has been provided and the revised site plan is expected to 

generate fewer trips than the original by fifteen trips per weekday and one per 

peak hours and no additional mitigation is needed. 

 

Based on the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council for the City of Mountain 

Home hereby makes the following: 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The notice and hearing requirements of Idaho Code Section 67-6509(a) have been 

met. 

2. The action taken herein does not violate Chapter 80 of Title 67 of the Idaho Code, 

the Idaho Regulatory Takings Act. 

3. Relevant criteria and standards for consideration of this application are set forth in 

Mountain Home City Code Section 9-6-3, City Code Section 9-6-10, City Code 9-18, 9-

19 and the 2020 Comprehensive Plan, along with the Local Land Use Planning Act, Title 

67, chapter 65. 

4. The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the 

request to amend the R-4 PUD Turner House Depot. 

 

Based on the forgoing CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, the City Council for the City of  

Mountain Home hereby enters the following:  

 

 

 

Page 211 of 360



Fof, CoL    10 

DECISION 

 The City Council for the City of Mountain Home having reviewed P&Z’s 

findings, the public hearing, the staff report, applicant narrative, site plan, and having 

considered the presentation of the applicant and additional testimony, hereby AFFIRMS 

and APPROVES Planning and Zoning’s recommendation to amend the entitled R-4 PUD 

"Turner House Depot" with the following conditions: 

1. Subject to site plan amendments as required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and 

Zoning Officials to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 

2. All future development will comply with the uses and bulk & coverage and 

landscaping controls as provided in the attached “Site Masterplan”, Landscape 

Plan and Planned Unit Development agreement.  

3. Per City Code 9-16-10(J), Failure to file and obtain the certification of the 

acceptance of the final plat application by the administrator within one year after 

action by the Commission shall cause all approvals of said preliminary plat to be 

null and void unless a one-year extension of time is applied for, thirty (30) days 

before the expiration, by the subdivider and granted by the Commission. A 

preliminary plat may be extended one time only, after which it shall be resubmitted 

to the administrator and the commission. 

4. All development regarding this application will be subject to the City of Mountain 

Home’s ability to provide municipal water and wastewater services.  

 

 

 DATED this __th day of December 2025. 

 

      CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 

 

 By__________________  

 

Rich Sykes, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 

 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL 

An applicant denied an application or aggrieved by a final decision or any 

affected person aggrieved by a final decision concerning matters identified in 

section 67-6521(1)(a), Idaho Code, may within twenty-eight (28) days after all 

remedies have been exhausted under local ordinance seek judicial review 

Page 212 of 360

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6521


Fof, CoL    11 

under the procedures provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code.   

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO REQUEST REGULATORY TAKINGS 

ANALYSIS 

 Please take notice of the applicant’s right to request a regulatory taking 

analysis pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code,  the Idaho Regulatory 

Takings Act.   

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING  

I hereby certify on this ___ day of _____, 2025 a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing document with attachments was mailed by U.S. Mail to the 

following: 

 

Emailed to: Brenda Ellis – Development Services Department  

Hank Patrick – Building Official 

 

By:____________________________ 

 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

  

Page 213 of 360

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH52
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


Fof, CoL    12 

Exhibit A: Legal Description 

TRACT I: 
The tract of land depicted as “Turner House Depot, LLC” on the Record of Survey 
recorded as Instrument No. 496063, Official Records of Elmore County, said tract 
hereinafter referred to as the Turner House Tract, being situate in the northeast quarter 
of the southeast quarter of Section 27, Township 3 South, Range 6 East, Boise 
Meridian, City of Mountain Home, County of Elmore, State of Idaho, and being more 
particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 27; 
thence from said Point of Commencement, North 00°03’01” East, coincident with the 
east line of said Section 27, a distance of 2,626.79 feet to the east quarter corner of said 
Section 27; thence reversing course, South 00°03’01” West, coincident with said east 
line, a distance of 985.07 feet; thence leaving said east line, South 89°40’56” West, a 
distance of 30.00 feet to a 5/8-inch rebar with an orange plastic cap stamped “PLS 
19630” marking the southeast corner of said Turner House Tract, said corner being the 
Point of Beginning of this description; 
thence from said Point of Beginning, coincident with boundary lines of said Turner 
House Tract, the following four (4) consecutive courses and distances: 
1. continuing South 89°40’56” West, a distance of 1,297.54 feet to a 1/2-inch rebar 
with a yellow plastic cap stamped “PLS 2471” marking the southwest corner of said 
Turner House Tract, and a point on the west line of the northeast quarter of the 
southeast quarter of said Section 27, 
2. North 00°01’19” East, coincident with said west line, a distance of 
945.51 feet to a 5/8-inch rebar with an orange plastic cap stamped “PLS 19630” marking 
the northwest corner of said Turner House Tract, 
3. North 89°42’06” East, a distance of 1,298.00 feet to a 5/8-inch rebar with an orange 
plastic cap stamped “PLS 19630” marking the northeast corner of said Turner House 
Tract, and 
4. South 00°03’01” West, a distance of 945.08 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
Containing an area of 28.16 acres of land, more or less. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 214 of 360



Fof, CoL    13 

Exhibit B: Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 215 of 360



Fof, CoL    14 

Exhibit C – Planned Unit Development Agreement 

 

  

Page 216 of 360



Page 217 of 360



Page 218 of 360



Page 219 of 360



Page 220 of 360



Page 221 of 360



Page 222 of 360



Page 223 of 360



Page 224 of 360



Page 225 of 360



Page 226 of 360



Page 227 of 360



Page 228 of 360



Page 229 of 360



Page 230 of 360



Page 231 of 360



Page 232 of 360



Page 233 of 360



Page 234 of 360



Page 235 of 360



Page 236 of 360



Page 237 of 360



Page 238 of 360



Page 239 of 360



Page 240 of 360



Page 241 of 360



Page 242 of 360



Page 243 of 360



Page 244 of 360



Page 245 of 360



Page 246 of 360



Page 247 of 360



Page 248 of 360



Page 249 of 360



Page 250 of 360



Page 251 of 360



Page 252 of 360



Page 253 of 360



Page 254 of 360



Page 255 of 360



Page 256 of 360



Page 257 of 360



Page 258 of 360



Page 259 of 360



FoF, CoL   1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

FOR THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 
 

IN RE:    ) 

     ) FINDINGS OF FACT AND 

Amended    ) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW    

Turner House Depot Subdivision )  

Applicant          )  

     ) 

PPLAT, PZ-24-30 

________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 This matter came for deliberation and decision before the City Council of the City 

of Mountain Home on the  23rd day of September, 2025 following a public hearing 

before the Planning and Zoning Commission with a recommendation rendered on  

August 19th, 2025, for a public hearing held pursuant to notice as required by law, on a 

request for an amended preliminary plat of certain real property that is within the 

corporate boundaries of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho. The amended request 

consists of two-hundred and eighty-seven (287) residential lots. Two-hundred thirty-

seven (237) detached single-family homes, with a mix of one- and two-story dwellings, 

and fifty (50) two-story townhouse units. 

 The original approved preliminary plat consisted of two-hundred eighty-eight 

(288) residential lots, two-hundred and thirty-three (233) of those lots were single-family 

detached home, thirty-three (33) lots were attached townhomes, and the other twenty-two 

(22) lots were attached live/work units.  

 On July 16, 2024, the applicant sought to amend the development and presented 

their request to amend the PUD as strictly residential removing the live/work commercial 

component. This request included three hundred (300) residential lots, an increase of 

twelve units from the originally approved PUD. This request consisted of two hundred 

seventy-twenty (225) single-family detached home lots, seventy-five (75) attached 

townhomes lots, and twenty-five (25) common lots. The request was approved by 

Planning and zoning. On August 13, 2024, the request came before City Council. The 

commercial live/work unit component was what was attractive with the development and 

rear setback proposed was vague. The application was tabled. On November 12, 2024, 

Page 260 of 360



FoF, CoL   2 

City Council remanded this request back to planning and zoning to include a commercial 

component.  

The notice of public hearing was given as required by law. Having heard from the 

Applicant in support of the application, the City Council having adopted the Staff Report 

and the Commission’s findings recommendation noting that no members of the public 

appeared to testify at the public hearing regarding the development and one letter was 

received,  and being fully advised in the matter, issues the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law as follows: 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1. The Applicant has applied for the preliminary platting of real property that is 

legally described in Exhibit A that is attached hereto and by this reference made a part of 

R-4 "Turner House Depot" PUD Zone. 

2. Notice of public hearing has been given as required by law. 

i. A notification was sent to one hundred thirty-six (136) property owners 

within 300 ft. on 07/24/2025. 

ii. A notification was sent to twenty-nine (29) Public Entities on 07/24/2025. 

iii. Notice of Public Hearing was in the Mountain Home News on 07/30/2025 

and 08/06/2025.   

iv. Notice of the Public Hearing was posted on the property on 07/30/2025. 

3. The owner of the real property for a preliminary plat is sought has requested in 

writing that the property be preliminary platted. 

4. No members of the public spoke during the public hearing concerning the 

preliminary plat. 

5. The proposed amendment removes the twenty-two (22) live/work units from the 

original PUD and Preliminary Plat and replaces that commercial component with one 

commercial lot of approximately 10,000 square feet to accommodate a building of 

approximately 3,200 square feet. 

6. The proposed amendment will increase the number of detached units from two-

hundred and thirty-five units to two-hundred thirty-seven units, an increase of two units 

from the originally approved plan. 

Page 261 of 360



FoF, CoL   3 

7. The proposed amendment removes the dedication of the public park to the city, 

relocates it, and the development retains ownership of that land for use as common lots 

for the amenities within the Turner House Planned Unit Development.   

8. The proposed subdivision would provide twenty-six common lots along with the 

following amenities: 

i. A park that is at least 30,000 square feet which provides: 

i. A children's playground area. 

ii. Community gathering space 

iii. Community Pavilion, including four (4) picnic tables. 

iv. Four (4) anchored benches. 

v. Screened Trash Enclosure Area 

ii. A covered school bus stop maintained by the development's HOA. 

iii. A Community Building that is a minimum of 3,000 square feet with a 

paved plaza space maintained by the HOA.  

iv. Internal neighborhood pathways maintained by the HOA.  

9. The proposed amended subdivision would contain two-hundred and eighty-seven 

(287) residential lots. Two hundred thirty-seven (237) of those lots would be for single-

family detached homes. Fifty (50) of the lots would be for attached townhomes, One (1) 

commercial lot and twenty-six (26) common lots.  

10. The applicant is requesting the following waivers, deviations, and variances to 

City Code, which were previously approved by the City and proposed to remain in the 

amended PUD Agreement (Exhibit C) 

a) Lot Dimensional Requirements.  

i. City Code Section 9-7-8 for R-4 zone. a. Minimum Size. 

Minimum lot size reduced from lot size range from 5,000-7,000 

square feet to 1,750 square feet for attached homes and 2,100 

square feet for detached homes.  

ii. Lot coverage up to seventy (70) percent. 

iii. Lot Minimum Street Frontage. Minimum lot frontage reduced 

from 50 feet to 20 feet. 

iv. No minimum floor area. 

Page 262 of 360



FoF, CoL   4 

b) Yard Setbacks. City Code Section 9-7-8 for R-4 zone.   

i. Side setback, interior: from five (5’) and twelve (12’) foot to zero 

(0’) feet for attached unit or zero lot line condition, otherwise 5 

feet. 

ii. Side setback, street: five (5’) feet minimum to sidewalk. 

iii. Front yard setbacks from fifteen (15’) to 10 feet minimum for 

alley-loaded homes/garages, and twenty (20’) feet for front 

loaded homes/garages provided that front porches may extend up 

to four (4’) feet into a ten (10’) front setback.  

iv. Rear yard setbacks: 15 foot minimum generally but permitted 

down to 12.5’ feet for single level homes with alley-loaded 

garages, with 20’ alley access.  

c) Driveway length: minimum driveway length of ten (10’) feet for alley loaded lots.  

d) Street Right-Of-Way Widths. City Code Section 9-16-13.A.3 We are proposing 

32 foot wide streets with restricted parking locations and variable right-of-way 

widths. Refer to Sheet PP-06 of the amended Preliminary Plat and PUD 

Agreement Item 9.a 

e) Half Streets. City Code Section 9-16-13.A.3.f Mountain Home Way is a new 

public collector road located on the west side of this development. Per approved 

PUD, we are constructing the east half of the road. 

f) Block Length. City Code Section 9-16-13.E.1.b.  

i. a. Block 2, along the south boundary is approximately 1,120 feet 

long and exceeds the maximum block length of 900 feet. No 

reasonable way has been identified to break up this block without 

negatively impacting the adjacent property. See PUD Agreement 

Item 9.d.i.  

ii. Blocks 13, 14, and 15, in the northeast corner of the project, are 

below the minimum block length of 250 feet. This section was 

re-designed with the removal of the live work units after Phase 1 

was recorded. The layout shown in the Preliminary Plat and PUD 

Master Plan optimizes the available space for residential lots. 

Page 263 of 360



FoF, CoL   5 

g) Corner Lot Size. City Code Section 9-16-13.E.2.f Corner lots are not required to 

be 20% larger as previously approved in the PUD. See PUD Agreement Item 

9.d.ii. 

h) Buffer Yards and Reserve Strips. City Code Section 9-16-13.H. It was discussed 

and agreed to by the City to include these areas in the back yard of the adjacent 

residential lots. 

i) House Size in Relation to Lot Size. City Code Section 9-19B-2-1.B.1 Lot 

coverage of up to 70% as previously approved in the PUD. See PUD Agreement 

item 10.b. 

11. Staff verified that the City of Mountain Home has adequate water and sewer 

capacity to service the subdivision as proposed. 

i. There are currently water and sewer EDU’s available. 

12. An updated traffic estimate and memo indicated that no additional mitigation is 

required as a result in the design changes. Further, the removal of the live/work units 

generates fewer trips by 30 trips per weekday.  

 

Based on the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council for the City of 

Mountain Home hereby makes the following: 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The notice and hearing requirements of Idaho Code Section 67-6509(a) have been 

met. 

2. The action taken herein does not violate Chapter 80 of Title 67 of the Idaho Code, 

the Idaho Regulatory Takings Act. 

3. Relevant criteria and standards for consideration of this application are set forth in 

Mountain Home City Code Section Mountain Home City Code Section 9-16-10. 

4. The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the 

request to amend the preliminary plat. 

 

Based on the forgoing CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, the City Council for the City of 

Mountain Home hereby enters the following:  

Page 264 of 360



FoF, CoL   6 

 

DECISION 

 The City Council for the City of Mountain Home having reviewed P&Z’s 

findings, the public hearing, the staff report, applicant narrative, site plan, and having 

considered the presentation of the applicant and additional testimony, hereby AFFIRMS 

and APPROVES Planning and Zoning’s recommendation to amend the "Turner House 

Depot" preliminary plat, attached as exhibit B, with the following conditions: 

1. Subject to site plan amendments as required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and 

Zoning Officials to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 

 

2. The Final Plat and all future development will comply with the uses and bulk & 

coverage controls as provided in attached “Proposed Planned Unit Agreement” 

and “Master Plan”.  

 

3. Prior to a Final Plats being recorded the applicant shall receive all necessary 

approvals from the Central Health District regarding water and sewer 

infrastructure.  

 

4. Per City Code 9-16-10(J), Failure to file and obtain the certification of the 

acceptance of the final plat application by the administrator within one year after 

action by the Commission shall cause all approvals of said preliminary plat to be 

null and void unless a one-year extension of time is applied for, thirty (30) days 

before the expiration, by the subdivider and granted by the Commission. A 

preliminary plat may be extended one time only, after which it shall be null and 

void. 

 

5. All development regarding this application will be subject to the City of Mountain 

Home’s ability to provide municipal water and wastewater services.  

 

 

 DATED this __th day of December 2025. 

 

      CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 

 

 By__________________  

 

Rich Sykes, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 

 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 

Page 265 of 360



FoF, CoL   7 

 

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL 

An applicant denied an application or aggrieved by a final decision or any 

affected person aggrieved by a final decision concerning matters identified in 

section 67-6521(1)(a), Idaho Code, may within twenty-eight (28) days after all 

remedies have been exhausted under local ordinance seek judicial review 

under the procedures provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code.   

 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO REQUEST REGULATORY TAKINGS 

ANALYSIS 

 Please take notice of the applicant’s right to request a regulatory taking 

analysis pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code,  the Idaho Regulatory 

Takings Act.   

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING  

I hereby certify on this ___ day of _____, 2025 a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing document with attachments was mailed by U.S. Mail to the 

following: 

 

Emailed to: Brenda Ellis – Development Services Department  

Hank Patrick – Building Official 

 

By:____________________________ 

 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

  

Page 266 of 360

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6521
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH52
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


FoF, CoL   8 

Exhibit A-Legal Description 

 
TRACT I: 
The tract of land depicted as “Turner House Depot, LLC” on the Record of Survey 
recorded as Instrument No. 496063, Official Records of Elmore County, said tract 
hereinafter referred to as the Turner House Tract, being situate in the northeast quarter 
of the southeast quarter of Section 27, Township 3 South, Range 6 East, Boise 
Meridian, City of Mountain Home, County of Elmore, State of Idaho, and being more 
particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 27; 
thence from said Point of Commencement, North 00°03’01” East, coincident with the 
east line of said Section 27, a distance of 2,626.79 feet to the east quarter corner of said 
Section 27; thence reversing course, South 00°03’01” West, coincident with said east 
line, a distance of 985.07 feet; thence leaving said east line, South 89°40’56” West, a 
distance of 30.00 feet to a 5/8-inch rebar with an orange plastic cap stamped “PLS 
19630” marking the southeast corner of said Turner House Tract, said corner being the 
Point of Beginning of this description; 
thence from said Point of Beginning, coincident with boundary lines of said Turner 
House Tract, the following four (4) consecutive courses and distances: 
1. continuing South 89°40’56” West, a distance of 1,297.54 feet to a 1/2-inch rebar 
with a yellow plastic cap stamped “PLS 2471” marking the southwest corner of said 
Turner House Tract, and a point on the west line of the northeast quarter of the 
southeast quarter of said Section 27, 
2. North 00°01’19” East, coincident with said west line, a distance of 
945.51 feet to a 5/8-inch rebar with an orange plastic cap stamped “PLS 19630” marking 
the northwest corner of said Turner House Tract, 
3. North 89°42’06” East, a distance of 1,298.00 feet to a 5/8-inch rebar with an orange 
plastic cap stamped “PLS 19630” marking the northeast corner of said Turner House 
Tract, and 
4. South 00°03’01” West, a distance of 945.08 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
Containing an area of 28.16 acres of land, more or less. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 267 of 360



FoF, CoL   9 

Exhibit B-Preliminary Plat 

Page 268 of 360



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

December 3, 2025 

 

RE: Inquiry from Councilmembers-Elect Regarding City-Provided Cell Phones 

City Council Meeting: December 9, 2025 

 

Mayor and Council, 
 
City staff were recently approached by members of the Council-Elect inquiring whether the City 
provides cell phones for use in their official capacity. 
 
Historically, the City of Mountain Home has not issued City-owned cell phones to members of the 
City Council. To confirm the appropriate process for considering this request, I consulted with the 
City’s legal counsel. Legal advised that any change to this practice, including the potential 
issuance of cell phones, stipends, or reimbursement structure, must be formally discussed and 
decided by the City Council. 
 
Based on this guidance, staff request that the City Council hold a discussion and take a formal vote 
on whether to provide City-issued cell phones to seated Councilmembers. 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Tiffany Belt  
City Clerk 
 
 
T  (208) 587-2104 
tbelt@mountain-home.us  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 269 of 360

http://www.mountain-home.us/
mailto:tbelt@mountain-home.us
tbelt
Stamp



Resolution #28-2025R  – Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  #28-2025R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, FIBER OPTIC FEES. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN 

HOME, IDAHO, as follows: 

 FIBER SECTION 1 – Fiber Optic Department Fees: 
 

The monthly fiber optic utility rates listed below will take effect upon connection to the City of 
Mountain Home's fiber optic systems as follows: 

 
1. FIBER OPTIC FEES. 

The fees for the City of Mountain Home Fiber Optics are hereby established to be effective 
December 10, 2025, as follows: 
 
Fiber Section 1-A: Monthly Maintenance and Operations Rates 

1. 1 GBPS Monthly Rate:    $17.50 
2. 10 GBPS Monthly Rate:   $29.50 

 
Fiber Section 1-B: Fiber Equipment, Materials, and Infrastructure Fees 

1. Equipment, materials, and infrastructure sold to or purchased by private 
companies or individuals for the installation of Mountain Home Fiber: Fee/Price 
= Cost paid by the City of Mountain Home plus 10%. 

 
Fiber Section 1-C: Disconnect/Reconnect 

1. There is no cost to disconnect from the utility, thus terminating the service and 
monthly utility fees (the infrastructure fee will still be required if not paid in full). 

2. Reconnection will incur a $45.00 reconnection fee, in addition to any necessary 
replacement or upgrade costs.  

 
Fiber Section 1-D: Colocation Services 

1. First Rack Unit (RU) w/120v & HVAC:  $350.00 Monthly 
2. Additional RU:     $50.00 Monthly 
3. Colocation Credit for Portal Providers:  $250.00 Monthly 

 
Jumper(S) shall be supplied and replaced, if necessary, by the tenant. There is no monthly rent or 
fee for jumper(s) supplied and maintained by the renter. The following one-time fees apply when 
jumper(s) are placed or removed. 

1. Outside Business Hours:    $150.00 one-time fee when 
placed/moved. 

2. During Business Hours:    $75.00 one-time fee when 
placed/moved. 
 
Fiber Section 1-E: Fiber Connection and Installation Fees 

1. Connection to Fiber Utility $3,600.00 plus $20.00 per additional foot beyond 100 
feet from the connection point (This fee is paid by the property owners who choose 
not to participate in the Local Improvement District (LID) for their area).  

2. Installation Inspection Fee (all new fiber services): $90.00 per connection & 
includes four inspections: 

a. 1st Inspection – Trench Trunk Line Conduit Inspection (done prior to trench 
closure) 

Page 270 of 360



Resolution #28-2025R  – Page 2 

b. 2nd Inspection - Fiber Service Line Inspection 
c. 3rd Inspection – Rough-in Inspection 
d. 4th Inspection – Final Inspection (final fiber connection setup & Inspection) 

3. Inspection Hourly Fee (all new fiber services)  $60.00 
4. Developer Fee (DEV. Agreement)  $2,400.00 

 
 
Fiber Section 1-F: Fiber Rates will be reviewed annually and adjusted as required 

based on material costs and inflation rates.  
 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, on the _________  day of December 2025.   
 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, on the _______ day of December 2025. 

 

       ____     
       Rich Sykes, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

      (SEAL)  

____  ________________       
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 
 
  
  

Page 271 of 360



Ordinance No. 1810 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 
ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO 

ORDINANCE NO. 1810 
 

(Annexation of Blue Yonder West) 

 AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, THE REAL PROPERTY 
HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED AND DECLARING THE SAME, BY PROPER LEGAL DESCRIPTION THEREOF, 
TO BE A PART OF SAID CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO: 

 SECTION 1:  That the real property particularly described in Exhibit A and B that is attached hereto 
and by this reference made a part hereof is situated in the County of Elmore, State of Idaho, is contiguous 
and adjacent to the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, and the owner or owners of said property, Daniel and 
Pairin Jacobs, have requested in writing that the property be annexed to the City of Mountain Home, 
Idaho, and said real property is hereby annexed to and made a part of said City of Mountain Home, 
Idaho.   

 SECTION 2:  That said real property is contiguous and adjacent to the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, 
and said real property is hereby declared to be a part of said City. 

 SECTION 3:  That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, 
and publication. 

 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this _____day of December 2025. 

 APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this ______ day of December 2025. 

 

 

 __                                                              _ 
 Rich Sykes, Mayor 
 

        

ATTEST:     (SEAL)   

      

_                                                 ____ 
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 
 

  

 

 

 

   

Page 272 of 360



Ordinance No. 1810 

STATE OF IDAHO,  ) 

    )  ss. 

COUNTY OF ELMORE, ) 

 

 I, TIFFANY BELT, the duly appointed, qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of 
Mountain Home, Idaho, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy 
of an ordinance duly enacted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, and 
approved by the Mayor as therein set forth and duly published in the Mountain Home 
News, a newspaper of general circulation printed and published in the County of Elmore, 
State of Idaho, on the _____ day of _________ 2025. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said 
City this ________ of ________, 2025. 

 

 

 _    _______________           ______ 
 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 273 of 360



Page 274 of 360



Page 275 of 360



 

Ordinance No. 1811 

ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO 
ORDINANCE NO. 1811 

 

(Zone R-4 PUD Blue Yonder West)  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, DECLARING 
THE REAL PROPERTY HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TO BE ZONED R-4 PUD SUBJECT 
TO LIMITATIONS OF ALLOWED USES, REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO: 

 SECTION 1.  That the real property particularly described in Exhibit A, 
Exhibit B, and Exhibit C that is attached hereto and by this reference made a part 
hereof be and the same is hereby declared to be R-4 PUD and that the uses 
permitted upon said property will and shall be limited to only the allowed uses 
specified and subject to the site plan amendments as required by Building, Public 
Works, Fire, and Zoning Officials in compliance with all applicable City Code 
provisions and standards.    

 SECTION 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 3.  That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its passage, approval and publication. 

 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this _____ day of 
December 2025.  

 

 APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this _______ day of 
December 2025. 

 

      _        
       Rich Sykes, Mayor 
ATTEST:     

      (SEAL)   

_      
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 276 of 360



Page 277 of 360



Page 278 of 360



Page 279 of 360



Page 280 of 360



Page 281 of 360



Page 282 of 360



Page 283 of 360



Page 284 of 360



Page 285 of 360



Page 286 of 360



Page 287 of 360



Page 288 of 360



Page 289 of 360



Page 290 of 360



Page 291 of 360



Page 292 of 360



Page 293 of 360



Page 294 of 360



Page 295 of 360



Page 296 of 360



Page 297 of 360



Page 298 of 360



Page 299 of 360



Page 300 of 360



Page 301 of 360



Page 302 of 360



Page 303 of 360



Page 304 of 360



 

Ordinance No. 1812 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 

ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO 

ORDINANCE NO. 1812 

 
(Amend the entitled R-4 PUD “Turner House Depot”) 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, 

DECLARING THE REAL PROPERTY HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TO BE THE 

TURNER HOUSE DEPOT AMENDING THE R-4 PUD ENTITLED “TURNER 

HOUSE DEPOT” SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS OF ALLOWED USES, REPEALING 

ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH 

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO: 

 SECTION 1.  That the real property particularly described in Exhibit A, Exhibit 

B, and Exhibit C that is attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof be and 

the same is hereby declared to be Turner House Depot PUD amending the R-4 PUD 

entitled “Turner House Depot” and that the uses permitted upon said property will and 

shall be limited to only the allowed uses specified and subject to the site plan 

amendments as required by Building, Public Works, Fire and Zoning Officials in 

compliance with all applicable City Code provisions and standards.    

 SECTION 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 3.  That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage, approval and publication. 

 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this ___ day 

of December, 2025 

 

 APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this _____day 

of December, 2025. 

 

      __   _________     

       Rich Sykes, Mayor 

ATTEST:     

__   _____   

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk   (SEAL) 

Page 305 of 360



Page 306 of 360



Page 307 of 360



Page 308 of 360



Page 309 of 360



Page 310 of 360



Page 311 of 360



Page 312 of 360



Page 313 of 360



Page 314 of 360



Page 315 of 360



Page 316 of 360



Page 317 of 360



Page 318 of 360



Page 319 of 360



Page 320 of 360



Page 321 of 360



Page 322 of 360



Page 323 of 360



Page 324 of 360



Page 325 of 360



Page 326 of 360



Page 327 of 360



Page 328 of 360



Page 329 of 360



Page 330 of 360



Page 331 of 360



Page 332 of 360



Page 333 of 360



Page 334 of 360



Page 335 of 360



Page 336 of 360



Page 337 of 360



Page 338 of 360



Page 339 of 360



Page 340 of 360



Page 341 of 360



Page 342 of 360



Page 343 of 360



Page 344 of 360



Page 345 of 360



Page 346 of 360



Page 347 of 360



Page 348 of 360



Page 349 of 360



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

December 2, 2025  

RE: Caselle Software – Change in Renewal Structure and Budget Impact for FY26 

City Council Meeting: December 9, 2025  

 

Mayor and City Council members, 

The purpose of this memo is to inform you of an unexpected change to the City’s Caselle software 
renewal structure and the resulting budget impact across several departmental line items. 
 
Caselle serves as the primary accounting and financial management software for the entire City of 
Mountain Home, including general ledger, payroll, utility billing, and accounts receivable/payable. 
It is an essential operating system used daily by all finance related staff. 
 
On November 7, 2025, City staff received a mailed notice from Caselle stating that, beginning July 
2026, the company will no longer accept monthly subscription payments and will require annual 
payments in full at the time of renewal. A copy of the letter is included for reference. This change 
was not communicated to the City prior to receipt of the letter, and staff had budgeted for FY26 
based on the long-standing monthly payment structure. 
 
Because the annual payment will occur within the FY26 budget year, this creates the potential for 
several budget lines to over-expend when the renewal is processed. The impacted budget lines are: 
 

25-434-43-20- Water  
26-435-43-20 – Wastewater  
27-433-43-00- Sanitation  
01-416-43-00- City Hall 

 
Staff is reviewing options to manage and mitigate these impacts; however, due to the timing and 
the unexpected nature of this change, it is important that Council be aware of the potential budget 
variance in the current operating budget (FY26). 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or would like additional details. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Tiffany Belt 
City Clerk 
 
T: (208) 587-2104 
tbelt@mountain-home.us  
 

Page 350 of 360

http://www.mountain-home.us/
mailto:tbelt@mountain-home.us
tbelt_1
Stamp



Development Services 
 

                                                                Mountain Home, Idaho 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Senior City Planner 

 

SUBJECT: CIP Amendment/Tischlerbise 

 

DATE:             November 25, 2025 

 
Attached is a memorandum from TischlerBiseGalena. This memorandum is a scope of cost and timeline to amend the 

current CIP. The goal for the amendment is to bring additional clarity within our document regarding compliance with 

State Code regarding Land Use Assumptions, per definition in State Code means a description of the service area and the 

projections of land uses, densities, intensities, and population in the service area over at least a twenty (20) year period. 

Additionally, this amendment will establish timelines for the CIP projects as required by State Code.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 351 of 360



 

  

1 

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

TO:    Brenda Ellis, City of Mountain Home 
 

FROM:   Colin McAweeney, TischlerBiseGalena 
 

DATE:  November 24, 2025 
 

RE:  Scope to Update Mountain Home CIP 

The scope of this project involves updating the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to align with Mountain 

Home's Comprehensive Plan. The updated CIP report will clarify that land use assumptions are derived 

from both the Comprehensive Plan and impact fee projections, though alternatively, a separate 20-year 

growth projection could be prepared in the impact fee report if additional time is allocated. The process 

will require meetings with Police, Fire, and Parks Department staff to prioritize CIP projects and establish 

timelines. The Streets CIP already includes an estimate construction timeline. 

To ensure compliance with CIP update requirements, the report must be reviewed by the impact fee 

advisory committee, adopted into the Comprehensive Plan through the Planning & Zoning Commission, 

and presented at a public hearing with City Council. It should be noted that this update will not modify 

the current fee amounts and will still require a comprehensive update in the future. The anticipated 

timeline for completion is approximately three months; however, this may be expedited depending on 

scheduling with the applicable City staff and committees. 

 

Below details the pricing and timeline of the effort. 

 

 

Project Team Member: McAweeney

Job Title:
Project 

Manager

Hourly Rate $200

Task 1: Project Initiation/Data Acquisition 4 4 $800 

Task 2: Develop Land Use Assumptions and Development 

Projections
8 8 $1,600 

Task 3: Updated Existing Police, Fire, Parks CIP Chapters 

with Year of Construction
8 8 $1,600 

Task 4: Prepare Updated CIP Report, City Presentations 16 16 $3,200 

Task 5: Meetings with Development Impact Fee Advisory 

Committee
8 8 $1,600 

TOTAL: 44 44 $8,800

Cost

MOUNTAIN HOME IMPACT FEE STUDY UPDATE

Total

Hours

Page 352 of 360



City of Mountain Home, ID 

Scope to Update CIP 

 

2 

 

 

Tasks

Anticipated

Dates Meetings Meetings/Deliverables

Task 1: Project Initiation/Data Acquisition Month 1 1 Data Request Memorandum

Task 2: Develop Land Use Assumptions 

and Development Projections
Month 1 1

Technical Memorandum Outlining 

Recommended Land Use Assumptions

Task 3: Updated Existing Police, Fire, Parks 

CIP Chapters with Year of Construction
Month 1-2 1

"Storyboard" Presentation on Updated 

CIP Project Years

Task 4: Prepare Updated CIP Report, City 

Presentations
Month 2-3 3

Draft/Final Report, Present to P&Z and 

City Council

Task 5: Meetings with Development 

Impact Fee Advisory Committee
Month 1-3 2

Draft DIF and CIP Report. Presentation 

materials as appropriate. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Page 353 of 360



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

December 3, 2025 

 

RE: Authorization to proceed with purchase – Dell Server Cluster FY26 Budget Allocations 

City Council Meeting: December 9, 2025 

 

Mayor and Council, 
 
Mayor and City Council members, 
  
This memorandum is to inform the city council of the following approved purchase and to authorize 
the Information Technology Department to proceed with the acquisition of a Dell Server Cluster 
and Storage array in the total amount of $84,848.41 
 
Funding for this purchase shall be allocated from the following lines: $52,000 from 01-421-99-00 
(Police Department Capital Equipment) and $32,848.41 from 01-415-99-00 (City Hall Capital 
Equipment), approved and allocated in the FY26 fiscal budget. 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Brandon Insco 
IT Manager 
 
 
T  (208) 587-2104 
BInsco@mountain-home.us  

Page 354 of 360

http://www.mountain-home.us/
mailto:BInsco@mountain-home.us


Your quote is ready for purchase.
Complete the purchase of your personalized quote through our secure online checkout before

the quote expires on Dec. 19, 2025.

You can download a copy of this quote during checkout.

Place your order

Quote Name: Server/Storage
Quote No. 3000195089684.10
Total $84,848.41
Customer # 530009596858
Quoted On Nov. 19, 2025
Expires by Dec. 19, 2025

Contract Name Dell NASPO Computer
Equipment PA - Idaho

Contract Code C000001121028
Customer Agreement # 23026 / PADD20245022
Solution ID 20820532.10

Sales Rep Cindy Villarreal
Phone 1(800) 4563355
Email Cindy.Villarreal@dell.com
Billing To ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 
PO BOX 10 
MOUNTAIN HOME, ID 83647-0010

Message from your Sales Rep

Please use the Order button to securely place the order with your preferred payment method online. You may contact
your Dell sales team if you have any questions. Thank you for shopping with Dell. 

Regards,
Cindy Villarreal

Shipping Group

Shipping To
DEREK WHEELER 
MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 
160 S 3RD E 
MOUNTAIN HOME, ID 83647-3019 
(208) 412-8633

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Product Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

PowerEdge R660 Smart Selection - [pe_r660_tm] $21,958.72 3 $65,876.16

PowerVault ME5012 - 21TBu - R5/R6 - 9k IOPS - Hybrid $18,972.25 1 $18,972.25

Page 1
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

Page 355 of 360

https://www.dell.com/quote/purchase/ordernow/en-us/validatequote?context=kQ4OumQYKJ7na9rxipx5zOQxolun4UD8jVYFZ%252Bv6IeVLBmvcE2arwzNygWEVoaoRvc3ZikTw3vL0rGjZ7fflZfNulYC35d31EbtpLKF0Kgq9Q5T96q2HL7AHR5wRGvQ0GWy4fMT6GTNlfFDRCb9ULdQ42VBzyNQdiRswGX3J7vo%253D&contextversion=2&ref=cce_em_qto
mailto:Cindy.Villarreal@dell.com


Subtotal:
Shipping:

Non-Taxable Amount:
Taxable Amount:

Estimated Tax:

Total:

$84,848.41
$0.00

$84,848.41
$0.00
$0.00

$84,848.41

Page 2
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

Page 356 of 360



Shipping Group Details

Shipping To
DEREK WHEELER 
MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 
160 S 3RD E 
MOUNTAIN HOME, ID 83647-3019 
(208) 412-8633

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

PowerEdge R660 Smart Selection - [pe_r660_tm]
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Dec. 02, 2025
Contract # C000001121028
Customer Agreement # 23026 / PADD20245022

$21,958.72 3 $65,876.16

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

PowerEdge R660 Server 210-BEQQ - 3 -

Trusted Platform Module 2.0 V6 461-AAIG - 3 -

2.5" Chassis with up to 10 Hard Drives (SAS/SATA), 2CPU,
PERC11 321-BHRW - 3 -

Intel Xeon Gold 6534 3.9G, 8C/16T, 20GT/s, 22.5M Cache,
Turbo, HT (195W) DDR5-4800 338-CPCK - 3 -

Intel Xeon Gold 6534 3.9G, 8C/16T, 20GT/s, 22.5M Cache,
Turbo, HT (195W) DDR5-4800 338-CPCK - 3 -

Additional Processor Selected 379-BDCO - 3 -

No HBM 379-BFFD - 3 -

Performance Heatsink for 2 CPU configuration (CPU less than
250W) 412-ABCK - 3 -

Performance Optimized 370-AAIP - 3 -

5600MT/s RDIMMs 370-BBRX - 3 -

RAID 1 780-BCDN - 3 -

PERC H355 Controller Front 405-ABCQ - 3 -

Front PERC Mechanical Parts, rear load 750-ADRI - 3 -

Power Saving BIOS Settings 384-BBBH - 3 -

UEFI BIOS Boot Mode with GPT Partition 800-BBDM - 3 -

4 Very High Performance Fans 384-BCUJ - 3 -

Dual, Redundant(1+1), Hot-Plug Power Supply,1100W
MM(100-240Vac) Titanium 450-AKLF - 3 -

Riser Config 1, Low Profile, 3x16 LP Slots (Gen4) 330-BBYX - 3 -

Motherboard MLK supports ONLY CPUs below 250W. Cannot
upgrade to CPUs 250W and above 329-BKBR - 3 -

Broadcom 57414 Dual Port 10/25GbE SFP28, OCP NIC 3.0 540-BCOC - 3 -

Broadcom 5720 Dual Port 1GbE LOM 540-BDKD - 3 -

Standard Bezel 325-BEVE - 3 -

Dell Luggage Tag 350-BCKC - 3 -

BOSS Blank 403-BCID - 3 -

No Quick Sync 350-BBXM - 3 -

iDRAC,Factory Generated Password 379-BCSF - 3 -

Page 3
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

Page 357 of 360



iDRAC Group Manager, Disabled 379-BCQY - 3 -

Windows Server 2025 Datacenter,16CORE,FI,No
MED,UnLTD VMs,NO CALs, Multi Language 634-CVFS - 3 -

Dell Connectivity Client - Enabled 379-BFXS - 3 -

Dell Connectivity Module 634-CYDF - 3 -

OpenManage Enterprise Advanced 528-BIYY - 3 -

iDRAC9, Enterprise 16G 528-CTIC - 3 -

Microsoft SQL Server 2022 Standard, 4 CORE, OEM, NFI with
SQL2019/2017 DWGD Media 634-BZWR - 3 -

Dell Secure Onboarding Client Disabled 634-CZRQ - 3 -

Cable Management Arm 770-BDMT - 3 -

ReadyRails Sliding Rails (A15) 770-BECD - 3 -

No Systems Documentation, No OpenManage DVD Kit 631-AACK - 3 -

PowerEdge R660 Shipping 340-DBXZ - 3 -

PowerEdge R660 Shipping Material, 10x2.5", 8x2.5" Smart
Flow or 16xEDSFF 340-DBYC - 3 -

R660 Dell label (BIS) for 2.5" Chassis 343-BBTS - 3 -

PowerEdge R660 CE, CCC Marking 343-BBUB - 3 -

ProSupport 7x24 Technical Support and Assistance 3 Years 887-1067 - 3 -

ProSupport Next Business Day On-Site Service After Problem
Diagnosis 3 Years 887-1075 - 3 -

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On-Site Service 887-1076 - 3 -

Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355 989-3439 - 3 -

On-Site Installation Declined 900-9997 - 3 -

32GB RDIMM, 5600MT/s, Dual Rank 370-BBRY - 12 -

480GB SSD SATA Read Intensive 6Gbps 512e 2.5in Hot-plug
AG Drive, 1 DWPD 400-AXTV

-
6 -

Power Cord - NEMA 5-15P to C13, 3M, 125V, 15A (North
America, Guam, North Marianas, Philippines, Samoa,
Vietnam)

450-AALV
-

6 -

Broadcom 57414 Dual Port 10/25GbE SFP28 Adapter, PCIe
Low Profile, V2

540-BDGV - 3 -

Windows Server 2025 Datacenter,16CORE,Media Kit, Multi
Lang, (Downgrade not included) 634-CVGF - 3 -

Windows Server 2025 Datacenter,16CORE,DF Recovery
Image, Multi Lang, (Downgrade not included) 528-DHTX - 3 -

Windows Server 2025 Datacenter,No Media,WS2022 DC
Downgrade DF Media, Multi Language 528-DHTZ - 3 -

Windows Server 2025 Datacenter,No Media, WS2022 DC
Downgrade w/DVD Media,Multi Lang 634-CVBR - 3 -

Windows Server 2025 Datacenter,No Media,WS2019 DC
Downgrade DF Media, Multi Language 528-DHVF - 3 -

Windows Server 2025 Datacenter,No Media, WS2019 DC
Downgrade w/DVD Media,Multi Lang 634-CVBN - 3 -

50-pack of Windows Server 2025/2022 User CALs (Standard
or Datacenter) 634-CVBW - 3 -

Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Page 4
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

Page 358 of 360



PowerVault ME5012 - 21TBu - R5/R6 - 9k IOPS - Hybrid
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Dec. 05, 2025
Contract # C000001121028
Customer Agreement # 23026 / PADD20245022

$18,972.25 1 $18,972.25

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell ME5012 Storage Array 210-BBII - 1 -

25Gb iSCSI 8 Port Dual Controller 403-BCPG - 1 -

Rack Rails 2U 770-BECR - 1 -

ME Series 2U Bezel 325-BDDO - 1 -

Power Supply, 580W, Redundant, WW 450-ALXL - 1 -

PowerVault ME 2U-12, CE Label Marking 389-EERU - 1 -

PowerVault ME5x12 Shipping 340-DCFR - 1 -

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty 871-9053 - 1 -

ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Onsite Service 3 Years 892-4158 - 1 -

ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Technical Support and Assistance 3
Years 892-4380 - 1 -

Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355 989-3439 - 1 -

On-Site Installation Declined 900-9997 - 1 -

Dell Networking, Cable, SFP28 to SFP28, 25GbE, Passive
Copper Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 2.5 Meter 470-AENJ - 6 -

Hard Drive Blank Filler 3.5 400-ABSK - 4 -

8TB Hard Drive SAS ISE 12Gbps 7.2K 512e 3.5in Hot-Plug,
AG Drive 161-BCNW - 4 -

1.92TB SSD SAS ISE, Read Intensive, up to 24Gbps 512e
2.5in with 3.5in HYB CARR, AG Drive 345-BELJ - 4 -

Powercord,125 Volt,15Amp,10 Foot, C13 to NEMA 5-15 450-AAME - 1 -

Powercord,125 Volt,15Amp,10 Foot, C13 to NEMA 5-15 450-AAME - 1 -

Subtotal:
Shipping:

Estimated Tax:

Total:

$84,848.41
$0.00
$0.00

$84,848.41

Page 5
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

Page 359 of 360



Important Notes

Terms of Sale

This Quote will, if Customer issues a purchase order for the quoted items that is accepted by Supplier, constitute a contract between the
entity issuing this Quote (“Supplier”) and the entity to whom this Quote was issued (“Customer”). Unless otherwise stated herein, pricing is
valid for thirty days from the date of this Quote. All products, pricing, and other information is based on the latest information available and is
subject to change for any reason, including but not limited to tariffs imposed by government authorities. Supplier reserves the right to cancel
this Quote and Customer purchase orders arising from pricing errors. Taxes and/or freight charges listed on this Quote are only estimates.
The final amounts shall be stated on the relevant invoice. Additional freight charges will be applied if Customer requests expedited shipping.
Please indicate any tax exemption status on your purchase order and send your tax exemption certificate to Tax_Department@dell.com or
ARSalesTax@emc.com, as applicable.

Governing Terms: This Quote is subject to: (a) a separate written agreement between Customer or Customer’s affiliate and Supplier or a
Supplier´s affiliate to the extent that it expressly applies to the products and/or services in this Quote or, to the extent there is no such
agreement, to the applicable set of Dell’s Terms of Sale (available at www.dell.com/terms or www.dell.com/oemterms), or for cloud/as-a-
Service offerings, the applicable cloud terms of service (identified on the Offer Specific Terms referenced below); and (b) the terms
referenced herein (collectively, the “Governing Terms”). Different Governing Terms may apply to different products and services on this
Quote. The Governing Terms apply to the exclusion of all terms and conditions incorporated in or referred to in any documentation submitted
by Customer to Supplier.

Supplier Software Licenses and Services Descriptions: Customer’s use of any Supplier software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, or in the absence of accompanying terms, the applicable terms posted on www.Dell.com/eula. Descriptions and
terms for Supplier-branded standard services are stated at www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global or for certain infrastructure products at
www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm.

Offer-Specific, Third Party and Program Specific Terms: Customer’s use of third-party software is subject to the license terms that
accompany the software. Certain Supplier-branded and third-party products and services listed on this Quote are subject to additional,
specific terms stated on www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms (“Offer Specific Terms”).

In case of Resale only: Should Customer procure any products or services for resale, whether on standalone basis or as part of a solution,
Customer shall include the applicable software license terms, services terms, and/or offer-specific terms in a written agreement with the end-
user and provide written evidence of doing so upon receipt of request from Supplier.

In case of Financing only: If Customer intends to enter into a financing arrangement (“Financing Agreement”) for the products and/or
services on this Quote with Dell Financial Services LLC or other funding source pre-approved by Supplier (“FS”), Customer may issue its
purchase order to Supplier or to FS. If issued to FS, Supplier will fulfill and invoice FS upon confirmation that: (a) FS intends to enter into a
Financing Agreement with Customer for this order; and (b) FS agrees to procure these items from Supplier. Notwithstanding the Financing
Agreement, Customer’s use (and Customer’s resale of and the end-user’s use) of these items in the order is subject to the applicable
governing agreement between Customer and Supplier, except that title shall transfer from Supplier to FS instead of to Customer. If FS
notifies Supplier after shipment that Customer is no longer pursuing a Financing Agreement for these items, or if Customer fails to enter into
such Financing Agreement within 120 days after shipment by Supplier, Customer shall promptly pay the Supplier invoice amounts directly to
Supplier.

Customer represents that this transaction does not involve: (a) use of U.S. Government funds; (b) use by or resale to the U.S. Government;
or (c) maintenance and support of the product(s) listed in this document within classified spaces. Customer further represents that this
transaction does not require Supplier’s compliance with any statute, regulation or information technology standard applicable to a U.S.
Government procurement.

For certain products shipped to end users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to Customer’s invoice. Supplier
encourages customers to dispose of electronic equipment properly.

Electronically linked terms and descriptions are available in hard copy upon request.

Page 6
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

Page 360 of 360

mailto:Tax_Department@dell.com
mailto:ARSalesTax@emc.com
http://www.dell.com/terms
http://www.dell.com/oemterms
http://www.dell.com/eula
http://www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global
http://www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm
http://www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms

	 CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM (5:00 PM)
	 PUBLIC HEARING  
	1) Public Hearing on Fiber Optic Fees
	PH Fiber


	 PRESENTATION/GUEST 
	1) Rachele Klein to speak on behalf of Republic Servi
	Mtn Home PI 2026
	1907 Current agreement with Republic Services


	 RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE
	 CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION
	 CONSENT AGENDA 
	1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Special City Counc
	11-21-2025- Special

	2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Counc
	11-25-2025

	3) Approve expenditures from 11/26/2025 to 12/09/2025
	Payment Approval Report ~ Council

	4) Authorize pre-approval of monthly expenditures fro
	5) Approve payroll for the period of 10/22/2025 to 11
	6) Approve the annual road and street financial repor
	City of Mountain Home 2025 - Annual_Road_Street_Report_Interactive

	7) Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all req
	2025-2026-006

	8) Approve Resolution 29-2025R, establishing new mont
	29-2025R - 2026 Establishing Garbage Fees by Resolution - December 2025
	Mtn Home PI 2026
	Mtn. Home Disposal - Annual Adjustments 2025- Residential Locations Only 2026 rates 
	1907 Current agreement with Republic Services

	9) Approve the agreement with Azuga and authorize the
	2025-09-23 - Azuga -  City of Mountain Home Agreement  Legal Final

	10) Approve the request to lease-purchase Self-Contain
	Fire SCBA and WUI

	11) Approve the Fire Department's request to reallocat
	Agreement with Rural on WUI Truck 2255

	12) Pass Resolution #27-2025R – Authorizing the Execut
	Resolution 27-2025R - Resolution Lease purchase SCBA for the FD

	13) Approve Finding of Facts for annexation with condi
	CC  FoF BYW ANX PZ-25-11

	14) Approve Finding of Facts to zone R-4 with PUD enti
	CC FInal PZ-25-10 FoF BYW PUD (002)
	Exhibits PZ-25-10 PUD Signed FOF

	15) Approve Finding of Facts preliminary plat "Blue Yo
	CC FoF - PPLAT - PZ-25-12

	16) Approve the Finding of Facts to amend the entitled
	CC 24-31 FoF PUD THD
	Exhibits Turner house

	17) Approve the Finding of Facts to amend the "Turner 
	CC-24-30 PZ FOF THD PPLAT


	 OLD BUSINESS
	 NEW BUSINESS
	1) Items removed from Consent Agenda
	2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to provide City
	Cell phone for elected - December 2025 

	3) Action Item: Deliberation/ Decision regarding Reso
	Resolution 28-2025R - Resolution Fiber Optic Fee


	 ORDINANCE
	1) Ordinance 1810- Annexation of "Blue Yonder West".
	Ordinance - #1810 Annexing Blue Yoner West - December 2025

	2) Ordinance 1811- to Zone R-4 PUD Blue Yonder West.
	Ordinance - #1811 Zoning R-4 Blue Yonder West- December 2025

	3) Ordinance 1812 amending the R-4 PUD entitled "Turn
	Ordinance - #1812 amend the entitled PUD Turn House Depot  - December 2025


	 FINAL COMMENTS
	 ADJOURN
	 STAFF MEMO
	1) City Hall staff reports.
	Memo-Caselle- over drawn budget lines

	2) Development Service staff reports.
	Memo to Council-CIP Amendment

	3) IT Department staff reports.
	Dell server cluster  - December 2025 



